
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, August 7, 2014 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Gayle Ortiz 
 Commissioners Ron Graves 

  Mick Routh 

  Linda Smith 

  TJ Welch 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of Draft Planning Commission minutes from July 17, 2014 meeting. 

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 127 Monterey Ave      #14-056      APN: 035-244-03 

Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit for the remodel of a Historic Resource 
located in the CV (Central Village) zoning district.   
This project is located in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Craig French, applied: 04/22/14 
Representative: Dennis Diego AIA (Architect) 

 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, August 7, 2014  2 
  

 

B. 111 Central Ave      #14-099      APN: 036-112-08 
Design Permit for a second story addition and Variance for the required parking at the 
existing Single Family Residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Anh Do 
Representative: Devlin Jones, filed 6/24/14 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

A. Standard Conditions for Commercial Uses 

 
B. Community Development Department Work Plan Update 

 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, September 4, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the 
City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

  



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, August 7, 2014  3 
  

 

 

 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1
st
 

Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on Charter Channel 
71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org. 
 

 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 

  
 
 
Chairperson Ortiz called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order  
at 7 p.m.     
 
1.   ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners:  Ron Graves, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and TJ Welch and Chairperson 
Gayle Ortiz. 

  
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None 

 
B. Public Comment  - None 

 
C. Commission Comment   
 
Commissioner Graves noted he has heard a lot of questions from merchants about other 
merchants’ outdoor sales and signs. He asked about the Village tripod sign program including 
how many permits and fees have been issued and collected. Community Development 
Director Rich Grunow responded that City Council addressed Village signs last year and made 
some modifications. There has been only one application, which was withdrawn. Regarding 
enforcement of both signs and outside merchandise, the City Council direction to staff was that 
enforcement be handled on a complaint basis rather than proactively. Commissioner Graves 
noted that citizens are often reluctant to be the “bad guy” and report violations. 
 
D. Staff Comments - None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. June 5, 2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
 
A motion to approve the June 5, 2014, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Graves 
and seconded by Commissioner Smith.   
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch. No: None. Abstain: Chairperson Ortiz 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. 528 Capitola Avenue      #14-094      APN: 035-094-29 

Sign Permit for a new wall sign to be located at the Dignity Health Medical Group 
located at 528 Capitola Avenue on a parcel that is located within two zoning districts 
including CN (Commercial Neighborhood) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, JULY 17, 2014 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Property Owner: Harold LaFont 
Representative: Bob Deschamps (Pro Signs Inc.), filed: 6/17/14 

 
A motion to approve project application #14-094 for a sign permit with the following conditions 
and findings was made by Commissioner Smith and seconded by Commissioner Routh: 
 
CONDITIONS  
1.  The property is located at 528 Capitola Avenue on the corner of Capitola Avenue and Beverly 

Avenue.  There is no monument sign on the site.  The new sign application is for wall sign facing 
Beverly Avenue.  The sign will be 35 square feet. The proposed halo illumination is not approved 
within this application. 
 

2.  The proposed halo illumination on the new wall sign facing Beverly Avenue has not been 
approved within this application due to possible impacts of lighting and visual clutter on adjacent 
residential properties.     
 

3.  Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 
Development Department and Building Department.   
 

4.  Prior to operation of a new business, the applicant shall obtain a business license from the City of 
Capitola. 

 
5.  This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 

approved building permit and installation of the sign underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 
6.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 
Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined that 
the proposed sign is allowed in the CN Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure the sign will secure the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the sign and 
determined that the sign complements the building form.  The sign maintains the character and 
integrity of the neighborhood within the City of Capitola. The proposed internal lighting has not 
been approved due to possible impact on adjacent property owners.  Conditions of approval 
have been included to carry out these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 

Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 
The proposed project involves a sign for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning Department 
Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch and Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None 

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
B. 2000 Wharf Road and Parcel Adjacent to 809 Bay Avenue      #14-096       

APNs: 035-021-42; 035-371-01; and 035-371-02 
Coastal Development Permit application and Tree Removal Permit for the Soquel Pump 
Station Force Main Replacement project. The project runs on either side of and under 
Soquel Creek from property adjacent to Peery Park through the Rispin property to 
Clares Street.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Applicant: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District 
Property Owners: Santa Cruz County Sanitation District and City of Capitola 
Representative: Rachel Lather, filed: 06/17/14 

 
This item was pulled from the Consent Agenda by Commissioner Graves and heard at the start of 
Public Hearings. 
 
Commissioner Graves noted as he read the proposed mitigation it appeared that the County has not  
decided precisely what it is going to do since it references two types of pipes and sizes. He expressed 
concern about granting a mitigated declaration for an incomplete EIR and asked for clarification. He 
also noted a specific concern of preserving the large sandstone rock in the vicinity that is home to 
many steelhead. He added he is in general supportive of the project. 
 
Rachel Lather spoke on behalf of the County. She explained the project is designed to minimize any 
chance of fracking under the creek and will be 40 feet underground at the creek and rock. The project 
engineer explained that the EIR references two types of pipe to allow bids using either one. Although 
they sound like different sizes, the interior diameter is the same and meets the required pressure 
rating. 
 
Commissioners expressed concern about potential slurry contamination from fracking. The contractor 
will have a contingency plan in place that requires work to stop and immediate action to prevent 
spread should there be any slurry. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz opened the public hearing. 
 
Kate Arietta voiced concerns about hours of operation and noise.  
 
Ms. Lather noted the contractors will observe construction hours of 7:30 a.m. to 5 p.m. for most of the 
project. The County is requesting an exception for the approximately five-day period when it will be 
pulling the pipe through, which requires a 24-hour operation. It is working with the nearby sleep center 
to coordinate timing of sleep studies.  
 
At the Clares and Wharf end, the project requires open cut construction for about a two-week period 
during regular construction hours. For the 24-hour work period, they can install a fence and noise 
barrier curtain 8- to 40-feet high to push sound away from nearby two-story apartment buildings. 
 
Chairperson Ortiz noted the creek is a natural amphitheater and often more people are affected 
because sound carries. The applicant and staff noted mitigation measures call for the contractor to 
have a noise complaint line and address concerns on a case-by-case basis. Hotel vouchers are 
available if needed.  
 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commissioners asked for extensive outreach and a live person monitoring the complaint line as a 
condition of approval.  
 
In response to questions about traffic impact on the Wharf Road side, the applicant explained that part 
of Clares will be closed, but no property access will be blocked and the intersection should not be 
impacted. 
 
Ms. Arrieta requested residents be sent a letter with plenty of information ahead of time and asked for 
early construction of any noise barriers.  
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioners directed staff to work on noticing and noise abatement with the County.  
 
A motion to approve project application #14-096 for a Coastal Development Permit and a Tree 
Removal Permit with the following conditions and findings was made by Commissioner 
Graves and seconded by Commissioner Smith: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
1. The project approval consists of a Coastal Development Permit to replace a sewer main currently 

located under the Soquel Creek with approximately 1,200 linear feet of a new transmission 
pipeline extending from the Soquel Pump Station on Bay Avenue to Clares Street and 
improvements to the existing pump station.   

 
2. A time schedule and phasing plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of Capitola 

Public Works Director prior to commencement of the project.  The phasing plan shall include the 
work schedule, including what months of the year the construction will take place, construction 
hours, and traffic control plan.  

 
3. The proposed extended hours for construction require an exemption for public health and safety 

which is approved by the Public Works Director and/or the City Manager.  At the time of exemption 
request, a noise mitigation plan must be submitted to the City. The noise mitigation plan shall 
include details of a highly visible onsite sign with 24-hour contact information, public noticing 
delivered to residents within 500 feet of the property line of the project, installment of sound 
shields prior to construction, all mitigation included in the mitigated negative declaration, and 
response times for questions/complaints,       

 
4. Two (2) weeks prior to the commencement of construction, all residents and property owners 

within 500 feet of the affected properties shall be noticed of the future construction and expected 
duration of the construction and noise.  During the period of nighttime construction, a 
representative must be available 24 hours a day to answer calls from the public.  The contact 
information for the representative with phone number must be included on the notice.  The City 
must approve the details of the noticing and point of contact prior to the notice being mailed.  If 
there is a noise complaint, noise metering should be conducted within the time specified in the 
noise mitigation plan.       

 
5. Required easements shall be documented and recorded prior to commencement of the project. 
 
6. The applicant shall be responsible for obtaining the necessary approvals for Riparian Exception 

from the County of Santa Cruz, Encroachment Permit from the California Department of 
Transportation, a Coastal Development Permit from the City of Capitola, and a Lake and 
Streambed Alteration permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

7. All mitigations measures proposed within the mitigated negative declaration for the project must 
be adhered to.  

 
8. The existing landscaping and trees adjacent to the Soquel Creek Pump Station will be removed to 

construct the flow meter room.  The four trees to be removed shall be replaced with 8 new trees in 
accordance with the City of Capitola tree replanting requirements. 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

  Zoning Ordinance and General Plan 
The project secures the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan by replacing a 
vital utility line (sewer line force main) that is in need of replacement in order to prevent leaks 
and provide service to the city’s existing uses. 

 
Local Coastal Plan  
 
D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  

-5-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 

 Public access and recreation will not be impacted. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.  The purpose of the 
project is to replace an existing sewer lines. 

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 The proposed project will be within property owned by the Santa Cruz County 
Sanitation District, City owned parcels of land, and the city owned right-of-ways.   

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 

-6-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

  
(D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff 
top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for 
the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b.Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

 No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 

-7-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  8 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

  
Policy 17, Pg. 15 of the 1989 City General Plan, states that, “Areas designated as visitor 
serving and/or recreational shall be reserved for visitor support services or recreational 
uses. Permissible uses include, but are not limited to hotels, motels, hostels, 
campgrounds, food and drink service establishments, public facilities, public beaches, 
public recreation areas or parks, and related rental and retail establishments. 
Residential uses are also permitted on dual designated visitor-serving/residential 
parcels; specifically, a portion of the El Salto Resort, and in the Village area. 
Development can be accomplished through private or public means”. 
 

 The project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies in that it 
replacing and upgrading an existing public facility that provides utility service to existing 
visitor serving and/or recreational uses. 

 
(D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

 The project will not permanently affect public or private parking, pedestrian access, or 
alternate mean of transportation as the construction will be temporary with nearly all of 
the resulting infrastructure being located underground. 

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project was reviewed by the City Public Works Director, as the majority of the work will 
be taking place underground within City owned property and the City of Capitola right of 
way.  The work in the right of way will meet the applied street design guidelines and 
standards. 

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 No public landmarks are affected by the project.  Impacts on views are temporary, limited 
to the presence of construction equipment and disturbance during work, as the 
improvements are largely underground.  Therefore, the project will not block or detract 
from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

  
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 

-8-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  9 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

apply. 
 
(D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and will be adopted by the applicant.  
The proposed mitigation measures ensure that the project complies with the natural 
resource, habitat and archaeological protection policies. 

 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

 A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and found that the project site does 
not support the habitat suitable for overwintering by monarch butterflies.   
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 The project will comply with all applicable erosion control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 The project complies with hazard protection policies and applies mitigation measures. 
 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 

 The project is located underground and will not be a cause for a fire hazard. 
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed development is not located on the shoreline and therefore does not require 
compliance with shoreline structure policies. 

 

-9-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  10 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 

 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

 The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
B.    The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

The project involves replacement of an existing sewer service that will be placed underground, 
therefore the character and integrity of the neighborhood will be maintained. 

 

C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted for this project based 

upon the completion of an Initial Study. 
 
 An Initial Study was prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a Mitigated 

Negative Declaration with mitigation measures addressing potential impacts will be adopted 
based on the determination that the project will not have a significant effect on the 
environment.   

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch and Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. 1440 41st Avenue      #14-075      APN: 0034-111-50 

Amendment to Master Sign Program (Four Starr Center) to allow an additional Verizon 
sign on the building located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone, but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Richard Starr 
Representative: Chris Merrell (Northwest Signs), filed: 5/20/14 

 
Assistant Planner Ryan Safty presented the staff report. He noted the existing master sign program 
allows one sign for tenants. The proposed change to allow two applies only to corner location 
expansions. 
 
In response to code reference that allows two signs at locations on a corner, Chairperson Ortiz 
questioned whether this change is considering a parking lot equivalent to a second street. Planner 
Safty replied that was not the intent. 
 

-10-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  11 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Chairperson Ortiz opened the public hearing. There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Graves said he anticipated this request and agreed that within the center you cannot 
see a Verizon sign. 
 
Chairperson Ortiz is not in favor of having two signs visible from one direction of the public roadway 
but none from another. She worries about the precedent for other master sign programs along 41st 
Avenue and a proliferation of duplicate signs.  
 
A motion to approve project applications #14-075 to amend the Master Sign Program with the 
following conditions and findings was made by Commissioner Graves and seconded by 
Commissioner Routh: 
 
CONDITIONS  
1.  All future signs at 1440 41st Avenue shall comply with the Master Sign Program. Individual sign 

permits may be issued by the Community Development Director or designee.   
 

2.  Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 
Development Department and Building Department.   
 

3.  Prior to operation of a new business, the applicant shall obtain a business license from the City of 
Capitola. 

 
4.  Part ‘C’ of the Four Starr Center’s MSP shall be amended to say, “Tenants on end-cap spaces 

facing 41st Avenue who expand their premises into contiguous adjacent units may be permitted, at 
Landlord’s sole discretion, to have one additional sign on the 41st Avenue side. The sign along 41st 
Avenue must be oriented on the diagonal elevation facing 41st Avenue.  The second sign must be 
located in the original location above the door to the second suite. Such signs shall meet the 
requirements and specifications set forth herein.” 

 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed Master Sign Program amendment is allowed in the CC Zoning District.  
Future sign applications will comply with the requirements of the Master Sign Program.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that future signs for the commercial 
suites are consistent with the Master Sign Program, Zoning Ordinance, and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the amended Master Sign Program complements the building form.  The MSP 
establishes requirements for future signs that will maintain the character and integrity of this 
commercial center within the City of Capitola. Conditions of approval have been included to 
carry out these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 

-11-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  12 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, and Welch. No: 
Commissioner Smith and Chairperson Ortiz. Abstain: None.   
 

B. 1649 41st Avenue      #14-076      APN: 304-151-09 

Sign Permit for new monument sign with LED lettering at the Shell Gas Station, located 
in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peninsula Petroleum LLC 
Representative: Hillary McClurg, filed 5/21/14 

 
Senior planner Katie Cattan presented the staff report. She noted that the requirement for opaque or 
wood background in the current sign ordinance is out-of-date for today’s signage. While staff has 
recommended denial of the application pending the zoning ordinance update, should the Commission 
consider approval staff would recommend language limiting such lighting to gasoline monument signs 
within the CC zoning district and prohibiting motion. 
 
Commissioner Graves confirmed that the square footage of the logo proposed for the canopy is 
smaller than that of the existing lettering, which allows that element to be approved at staff level. 
 
Chairperson Ortiz opened the public hearing. 
 
Hillary McClurg represented the applicant. She explained the proposed changes are a Shell 
requirement of all franchisees. Shell agreed to keep the pecten shell logo size within the height of the 
canopy. She noted that the requested LED on the monument sign reduces the carbon footprint and is 
safer for employees that have to change the pricing.  
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Smith agreed with staff that the impact of digital elements does require significant 
thought, but gas station pricing is moving in that direction.  
 
Commissioner Welch does not have a problem with the proposal. LED is cleaner and the other option 
is not as aesthetically pleasing. He feels non-moving LED for gas stations could be appropriate at this 
time.  
 
Chairperson Ortiz clarified that architectural illumination such as the canopy band is not regulated 
under signs, but could be considered under a design permit if the applicant wishes to challenge the 
staff denial. The applicant noted they are on a tight schedule to implement the required changes and 
they do have options for denials. 
 
A motion to approve project application #14-076 for a Sign Permit with the following 
conditions and findings was made by Chairperson Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner 
Welch: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of a new monument sign at the Shell Gas Station and 
replacement of existing Shell lettering within the Canopy.  The new monument sign is limited 
to the existing sign size of 96 square feet.  No increase in the height, width, or size of the 
monument sign is allowed.  The Shell logo is allowed to replace the Shell lettering in the 
canopy.  The red internally illuminated band around the canopy was not approved by the 
Planning Commission.   

-12-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  13 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

2. Digital LED lettering is allowed within the approval.  The image on the LED sign shall not be 
animated or moving at any time.  The installed sign must match the plans reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Commission on July 17, 2014.  Any significant modifications to the 
size or exterior appearance of the approved design must be approved by the Planning 
Commission.   

3. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-
compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

4. Prior to installation of a new sign, the applicant must obtain a permit from the Community 
Development Department and Building Department.   
 

FINDINGS  
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will maintain the character and 

aesthetic integrity of the subject property and the surrounding area.  
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 

monument sign.  The proposed monument sign maintains the character and aesthetic integrity 
of the subject property and the surrounding CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and 
the surrounding area.  The property is not located close to residential uses or within an area 
dominated by historic resources.   LED lettering is appropriate in the CC zone limited to 
gasoline pricing within service station monument signs.     

B. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will reasonably prevent and reduce 
the sort of visual blight which results when signs are designed without due regard to 
effects on their surroundings.  

 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
project.  The project will not cause visually blight.  The Digital LED lettering within the sign 
provides a practical, clean solution for displaying changing gasoline prices.  Although 
appropriate for gas pricing, digital LED lettering is not appropriate for monument signs for 
other uses within the CC zoning district.     

 C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.  

 The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Routh, Smith and 
Welch and Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None 

  

6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT   
Staff is moving forward with the Zoning Ordinance update work plan and finalizing interview and 
survey questions. Commissioners will be contacted about participation on panels. 
 

7.  COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS  
Commissioner Routh  asked about the status of the home on Capitola Road that has exceeded 
acceptable limits for completion. Director Grunow said staff continues to work with the property 
owner. 
 
Commissioner Smith said she will not be able to attend the August meeting. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz asked if anyone could identify the series of four short blasts that neighbors 
have been hearing in the Riverview area. It was suggested that it could be a sewer alarm. 

 
 
 

-13-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 17, 2014  14 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Ortiz adjourned the meeting at 8:32  p.m. to the regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, August 7, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 
420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on August 7, 2014. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minute Clerk 
 

-14-

Item #: 3.A. 7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  AUGUST 7, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 127 Monterey Ave   #14-056  APN: 035-244-03 

Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit for the remodel of a Historic Resource 
located in the CV (Central Village) zoning district.   
This project is located in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Craig French, applied: 04/22/14 
Representative: Dennis Diego AIA (Architect)  

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for 
modifications to a historic resource located at 127 Monterey Avenue.  The project is located in the CV 
(Central Village) Zoning District and within the Six Sisters - Lawn Way National Historic District. The 
applicant is proposing to change the use from commercial to residential with modifications to internal 
layout and exterior façades of the building.  No addition to the structure is proposed.  Modifications to 
a historic resource require approval of a Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit by the Planning 
Commission.   
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1911, a tract of summer cottages designed by Architect Edward L. Van Cleeck were built along 
East/West Lawn Way and North Lawn Way.  The City of Capitola established the Lawn Way/Six 
Sisters Historic District in 1987.  The Capitola Architectural/Historical Inventory describes the Lawn 
Way as “a series of one-story cottages once associated with Camp Capitola (that) line ‘Lawn Way’ 
which led to and from the resort’s grand hotel, Hotel Capitola.”  The home at 127 Monterey Avenue is 
located within the historic district boundary and is a contributing structure.  The structure has served 
multiple uses including residential (1911-1948 and 1950-1985), commercial (1986 – present), and for 
one year City Hall (1949).    
 
Architecture and Site Review Committee  
On July 9, 2014, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the design permit application.  

 Historian Carolyn Swift noted the many modifications made to the structure over the years 
including change of use.  She complimented the proposed renovations.    

 Home Designer Derek Van Alstine complimented the proposed renovations.   

 Landscape Architect Craig Waltz did not request any modifications to the plan.  

 City Public Works Director Steve Jesberg requested that future drainage be discharged to the 
lawns rather than the alley way.   

 City Building Official Mark Wheeler provided the applicant information on fire sprinkler 
requirements for the change of use.  

-15-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



 

Site and Structural Data 
The project conforms with all CV (Central Village) Zoning standards, except for the existing non-
conforming parking, as follows: 
 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 841  sq. ft. 

Proposed Square Footage 

Existing House    726 sq. ft. 

Proposed House     726 sq. ft.  No Change 

Building Height 

 CV District Proposed 

Residential 27'-0" 17 ft high. No change 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential (up 
to 1,500 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total None.  No changes 

 
 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is proposing to convert the historic structure at 127 Monterey Avenue from commercial 
back to residential.  To accommodate the change of use to residential, the applicant is proposing 
modifications to the internal layout of the structure and minor changes to the exterior of the structure. 
Beyond the modifications to accommodate the use, the applicant is also making changes to 
rehabilitate the existing building to incorporate features that once existed and were lost.   
 
The structure at 127 Monterey has been modified from its original form and materials.  The original 
building had a front porch oriented to Monterey Avenue. By 1947, the front porch was enclosed as 
evidenced in photos from the year City Hall was located within the structure.  The entrances and front 
porch were modified further over the years to the current configuration of a non historic addition with 
an ADA accessible ramp leading to the front door along Monterey Avenue.   
 
The majority of the exterior modifications to the structure will occur within the non-historic portions of 
the structure, including the front porch enclose along Monterey Avenue and the connective element 
between 127 Monterey Avenue and the adjacent property at 104 Lawn Way.  Within these areas, the 
applicant is proposing changes to the current window and door configuration to compliment the 
historic scale and character of the original structure while providing light and privacy in appropriate 
areas.  The modifications to the original structure include reintroduction through replication of the roof 
collar ties and bargeboard ends within the south and north gables.  Also, the window on the south 
elevation oriented toward Lawn Way will replicate the original in location, size, material, and muntin 
pattern on the south elevation oriented toward Lawn Way.  The plans also include the introduction of a 
post in between the ribbon of new windows that span the historic porch and recent addition.  This post 
creates a visual element to exposes the conventional structural framing and form that existed within 
the original structure.             
 
Modifications to historic resources must comply with the Secretary of Interior Standards for 
rehabilitation. The City contracted Leslie Dill of Archives and Architecture to review the proposal for 
consistency with the standards.  During Ms. Dill’s initial review, she requested that the following 
modifications be made to the plan originally submitted:  
 

 Original configurations of the notched bargeboard ends be restored if possible when the collar 
ties are added (Standard 3). 

-16-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



 

 The new focal window on the south elevation replicate the placement, size, material, and 
muntin pattern of the historic window (Standard 5). 

 The proposed section of wainscoting to replace the commercial entry door either match the 
brick or be otherwise differentiated from the historic cladding (Standard 9). 

 It is recommended that the proposed windows near the southeast corner of the south (front) 
elevation be divided into two units that are on either side of the former corner post location 
(Standard 9). 

 The proposed bedroom window near the northwest corner of the north elevation be revised to 
provide the appearance of conventional structural framing beneath the roof support. (Standard 
9) 

 
The Architect modified the plans to incorporate the suggested modifications to the plans. On July 23, 
2014, Leslie Dill made findings that the proposed rehabilitation to the historic resource at 127 
Monterey Avenue complies with the Secretary of Interior Standards for rehabilitation. (Attachment B) 
 
Central Village Design Guidelines 
The development standards for the Central Village zoning district are set forth in the Central Village 
Design Guidelines.  The City of Capitola adopted the Central Village guidelines to promote excellence 
of development and maintain the unique character of Capitola Village.  The Central Village District 
Design Guidelines include general guidelines for all projects within the Village and four guidelines 
specific to the Lawn Way Residential Overlay District.  The guidelines for the Lawn Way Residential 
Overlay District are underlined, followed by staff analysis:  
 

1. The residential use and character of the area shall be maintained.  There shall be no 
conversion from residential to commercial for any structure which faces onto Lawn Way. 
Complies: The use is being converted back to residential and will maintain the residential 
character of the district.  Although commercial conversion to residential are not allowed within 
the CV district, this structure may be converted due to the location within the Lawn Way 
district. 

2. No structure shall increase the habitable area of the existing unit.  The height of the structure 
shall not be increased to add additional stories to the structure.  
Complies: No addition is proposed to the structure.   

3. The public sidewalk right-of-way shall be maintained in is present configuration. 
Complies: There will be no changes to the public sidewalk.  

4. Garbage cans, utilities and other outside storage areas to the rear of the Lawn Way structures 
shall be enclosed and screened from public view.  
Complies: Garbage cans are stored in the alleyway.  There is some natural vegetation that 
screens the alleyway on the side of 127 Monterey.   The standard condition of approval for 
shielding garbage and recycling is included as condition #18.  Condition #18 states “Upon 
receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be shielded and 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.”  
 

CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts projects limited to maintenance, repair, stabilization, 
rehabilitation, restoration, preservation, conservation or reconstruction of historical resources in a 
manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Preserving, Rehabilitating, 
Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings.  This project involves a restoration and remodel of 
an existing historic resource located in the CV (central village) zoning district. The project conforms 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.  No adverse environmental impacts 
were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
  

-17-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #14-056 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of rehabilitation of an existing historic resource locate at 127 
Monterey Avenue. No addition to the existing structure is proposed.  Modifications to the 
windows, doors, and decorative features are included in the proposal.  The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission 
on August 7, 2014, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning 
Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans.  
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall 
be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall 
be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission approval 
and potentially a review by the Historic Architect for continued conformance with the Secretary 
of Interior standards.  
 

6. All exterior materials shall be installed according to the approved set of plans.  The 
replacement window on the south elevations shall be a true divided light wood window to 
replicate historic location, size, materials, and muntin pattern of historic window evidenced in 
photo. Exterior materials include: wood trim, wood shingles, wood siding, wood windows, and 
brick wainscot.        
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #14-056 shall be 
paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Water 
District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 
plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

-18-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 
verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 
 

15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 
be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 
 

16. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

17. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 
 

18. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be shielded 
and placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the rehabilitation of the historic structure.  The 
project secures the purpose statement of the CV (Central Village) Zoning Districts and carries 
out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the rehabilitation of the historic structure.  The 
proposed modifications will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood and the 

-19-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



 

Lawn Way/Six Sisters Historic District.  The proposed design will enhance the home’s 
architectural appearance and historic integrity.     
 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15331 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts projects limited to maintenance, repair, 
stabilization, rehabilitation, restoration, preservation, conservation or reconstruction of 
historical resources in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings.  This project 
involves a restoration and remodel of an existing historic resource located in the CV (central 
village) zoning district. The project conforms with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
Rehabilitation.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the 
proposed project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Plans 
Attachment B: Findings for compliance with Secretary of Interior Standards for Rehabilitation.  
Attachment C: Historic Photos 
     
 

-20-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf



21

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

K
'D

 B
Y

:

A
0

.0

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K
D

A
T

E

©
 2

0
1
4

N
W

D
D

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

T
  

4
/1

7
/1

4

  
5

/1
/1

4
R

E
V

. 
1

R
E

V
. 
2

  
7

/1
7

/1
4

/Users/dda4imac12/Dropbox/Projects/French- Capitola/127 Monterey Ave. R5 17.pln

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
A

P
IT

O
LA

 C
O

T
TA

G
E

1
2
7
 M

o
n
te

re
y 

A
ve

C
ap

it
o
la

, 
C

A
, 
9
5
0
1
0

D
E

N
N

IS
 F

. 
D

IE
G

O

A
R

C
H

I
T

E

C
T

D
E

S
E

N
CI L

E
T

A
T

S

O
F

C
L

A
I
F

O

*
*

C
 -

1
5
7
2
1

N

R

IA

R
E

N
 5

•3
1
•1

5

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

.

N

3
4
'-
6
"

2
8
'-
5

1
/4

"

27'-101/2"

9'-9"16'-5
1/2"

1'-
1/4"

5
'-
4
"

2
9
'-
2
"

1'-1
/2" 13'-0"

14'-6"
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 L

IN
E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
R

IC
K

L
A

N
D

IN
G

 &
 R

A
M

P
 U

P

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
T

R
E

E
T

T
R

E
E

(E
) 

1
2
" 

C
U

R
B

L
A

W
N

 W
A

Y

MONTEREY AVE.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 T
O

R
E

M
A

IN

ADJOINING RESIDENCE

1
0
' A

L
L
E

Y

27'-2
1/2"

7
2
6
 s

q
 f

t

1
2

3

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

.
L

A
W

N
 W

A
Y

MONTEREY AVE.

2
0
.2

3

2
5
.7

27.2

19.53

7.66

5
.6

6

5
.6

6
2
0
.1

1

2
0
.5

3
4
.5

2

2
8
.4

4

27.91

27.2

10.26

30.0

1

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/8

" 
  
=

  
  
1
'-
0
"

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/8

" 
  
=

  
  
1
'-
0
"

P
A

R
C

E
L
 M

A
P

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
A

T
A

1
.!

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
: 
!

1
2
7

 M
O

N
T

E
R

E
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

!
!
!

!
!

!
C

A
P

IT
O

L
A

, 
C

A
.,

 9
5
0
1

0
!
!

2
.!

A
P

N
: 

  
!
!

!
!

0
3
5
-2

4
4
-0

3

3
.!

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
: 

 C
o
n
v
e
rt

 u
s
e
 f

ro
m

 r
e
ta

il 
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l

h
is

to
ri
c
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
 R

e
m

o
d
e
l

fl
o
o
r 

p
la

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

 e
n
tr

y
 d

o
o
r.

 R
e
m

o
v
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

re
lo

c
a
te

 (
1
) 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
,

re
p
la

c
e
 (

3
) 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 i
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
 (

4
)

n
e
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
  

D
A

T
A

4
.!

Z
O

N
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
:!

!
C

V
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 V

IL
L
A

G
E
!

5
.!

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 T

Y
P

E
: 
!

V
B
!

6
. 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 &
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 -
  

  
  
7
2
6
 /

 S
.F

. 
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

! !
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
:

! !
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L
 !

N
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 T
O

 S
.F

.
! !

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
!

N
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 T
O

 S
.F

.!
!

!

!
N

E
W

 P
O

R
C

H
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 5

0
 S

.F
.!

!

!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
:

!
L
O

T
: 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

8
 X

 3
0
 =

  
  

  
8
5
6
!

S
F

!
M

A
IN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

:!
  

  
  

  
  

 7
2
6
 S

F
!

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
P

A
C

E
S

:!
  

  
  

  
  

 N
A

!
O

T
H

E
R

(s
p
e
c
if
y
):
!

  
  

  
  

  
 5

0
 S

.F
. 

P
O

R
C

H
!

! !S
H

E
E

T
 I

N
D

E
X

A
0
.0
!
C

O
V

E
R

 S
H

E
E

T

A
2
.1
!
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

!
&

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

A
2
.2
!
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
S

A
3
.1
!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

1
!

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L
A

N
 &

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S
!

(F
R

O
M

 1
9
8
6
 A

L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
)

! S
T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 F
O

R
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 H
IS

T
O

R
IC

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

1
.!

T
h
e
 i
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
s
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 r

e
h

a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 I
n
te

ri
o

r’
s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

H
is

to
ri
c
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
.

-21-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf



21

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

K
'D

 B
Y

:

A
2
.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K
D

A
T

E

©
 2

0
1
4

N
W

D
D

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

T
  

4
/1

7
/1

4

  
5

/1
/1

4
R

E
V

. 
1

R
E

V
. 
2

  
7

/1
7

/1
4

/Users/dda4imac12/Dropbox/Projects/French- Capitola/127 Monterey Ave. R5 17.pln

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
L
A

N

&
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
A

P
IT

O
LA

 C
O

T
TA

G
E

1
2
7
 M

o
n
te

re
y 

A
ve

C
ap

it
o
la

, 
C

A
, 
9
5
0
1
0

D
E

N
N

IS
 F

. 
D

IE
G

O

A
R

C
H

I
T

E

C
T

D
E

S
E

N

CI
L

E
T

A
T

S

O
F

C
L

A
I
F

O

*
*

C
 -

1
5
7
2
1

N

R

IA

R
E

N
 5

•3
1
•1

5

2
2

2
4
'-
1
0
"

7
'-
0
"

1
1

1

4'-8
1/2"1'-10"

1
4 8 1 4 1
029 7 1
6

1
6

1
7

2
1

1
8

2
2

2
3

2

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

6
7

1

16'-2"

2

4

1
4

1
5

1
1

1
08 45 1
6

1
3

A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

B
E

Y
O

N
D

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

9

F

2

2

2

2

9'-9"3'-3
1/2"

2'-4"9'-7
1/2"

9
'-
6
"

5
'-
1
"

9
'-
6

1
/4

"

2
6
'-
1

1
/4

"
2
'-
3

1
/4

"

2
7
'-
6
"

3
1
'-
0
"

14'-5
1/4"

13'-0"

3
1
'-
5

3
/4

"

27'-6"

3
4
'-
5

1
/4

"

5
'-
4
"

2
9
'-
1

1
/4

"

3
4
'-
5

1
/4

"
3
4
'-
5

1
/4

"

2
4
'-
1
0

1
/2

"

1'-11
1/2"

S
O

U
T

H
A

.2

E
A

S
T

A
2
.1

N
O

R
T

H
A

2
.1

W
E

S
T

A
2
.1

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

W
/ 

N
E

W
 W

IN
D

O
W

W
A

S
H

E
R

/D
R

Y
E

R
B

E
N

E
A

T
H

 C
O

U
N

T
E

R

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

L
IV

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

K
IT

C
H

E
N

N
O

T
E

:

F
O

R
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

 S
E

E
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
H

E
E

T
 1

 O
F

 1
9
8
6

 A
L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S

26'-2
1/4"

ADJOINING RESIDENCE

23

51
4

1
1

1
6

2

2

51
9

1
2

2
45

5

4
2
" 

M
IN

. 
S

IL
L
 H

G
T
.

618 7 2
0

1
0

1
9

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

3

8

2

2

2

2

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  
1
'-
0
"

S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

L
A

W
N

 W
A

Y
)

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  

1
'-
0
"

E
A

S
T

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

M
O

N
T

E
R

E
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

)
S

C
A

L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  

=
  
  
1
'-
0
"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  
1
'-
0
"

W
E

S
T

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  

1
'-
0
"

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

A
L
L
E

Y
)

E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

1
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 S
ID

IN
G

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN
. 
T

O
 B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 !

!
W

H
IT

E

2
.!

W
IN

D
O

W
S

 I
N

S
T
A

L
L
E

D
 I

N
 1

9
8
6
 A

L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S

!
(D

A
S

H
E

D
 L

IN
E

S
) 

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
.

!
S

E
E

 R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L
A

N
 S

H
E

E
T

 1
. 

(1
9
8
6
 A

L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
)

3
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
IN

D
O

W
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

. 
(N

O
. 

9
-1

1
)*

*

4
.!

N
E

W
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 I
N

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

 (
N

O
. 

1
, 

6
,7

, 
&

9
)*

*

5
.!

N
E

W
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 I
N

 N
E

W
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
 (

N
O

. 
2
-4

 &
 8

)*
*!

6
.!

N
E

W
 3

' X
 3

' W
IN

D
O

W
 T

O
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

 (
N

O
.5

) 
**

7
.!

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 A

T
T

IC
 V

E
N

T
S

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

8
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
F

 E
A

V
E

 O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

S
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

9
.!

N
E

W
 R

O
O

F
 C

O
L
L

A
R

 T
IE

 D
E

T
A

IL
 @

 E
A

V
E

S
 (

M
IS

S
IN

G
 !
!

!
H

IS
T

O
R

IC
 F

E
A

T
U

R
E

 B
E

IN
G

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
D

)

1
0

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

R
IC

K
 (

1
9
8
6
) 

W
A

IN
S

C
O

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

1
1
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
E

V
E

L
 L

A
P

 S
ID

IN
G

 W
A

IN
S

C
O

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

 A
N

D
 !

!
T

O
 B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

1
2

.!
N

E
W

 B
E

V
E

L
 L

A
P

 S
ID

IN
G

 T
O

 M
A

T
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 T
O

 B
E

 !

!
P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

1
3

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

R
IC

K
 P

A
V

IN
G

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

1
4

.!
N

E
W

 H
E

A
V

Y
 A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 R
O

O
F

IN
G

. 
!

!

!
G

A
F

 T
IM

B
E

R
L
IN

E
 H

D
. 

C
O

L
O

R
: 

'W
E

A
T

H
E

R
E

D
 W

O
O

D
'  

(T
Y

P
.)

1
5

.!
R

E
M

O
V

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 H

A
N

D
R

A
IL

1
6

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
P

P
E

R
 G

U
T

T
E

R
 &

 D
O

W
N

S
P

O
U

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

1
7

.!
N

E
W

 W
O

O
D

 E
N

T
R

Y
 D

O
O

R
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E

1
8

.!
N

E
W

 B
R

IC
K

 P
O

R
C

H

1
9

.!
R

E
M

O
V

E
 D

O
O

R
 A

N
D

 F
R

A
M

E

2
0

.!
N

E
W

 B
R

IC
K

 W
A

IN
S

C
O

T
IN

G
 T

O
 M

A
T

C
H

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
1

.!
N

E
W

 W
IN

D
O

W
 W

/ 
D

IV
ID

E
D

 L
IG

H
T

 T
O

 R
E

P
L
IC

A
T

E
 H

IS
T

O
R

IC
 !

!
S

IZ
E

, 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
 &

 M
U

N
T

IN
 P

A
T

T
E

R
N

 O
F

 H
IS

T
O

R
IC

 W
IN

D
O

W
.

 !
(S

E
E

 H
IS

T
O

R
IC

 P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

 A
3
.1

)

2
2

.!
B

A
R

G
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 T

O
 M

A
T

C
H

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

2
3

.!
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 U
N

IT
S

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

C
A

T
E

D
 O

N
 E

IT
H

E
R

 !

!
S

ID
E

 O
F

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 C

O
R

N
E

R
 P

O
S

T
.

2
4

.!
R

E
M

O
V

E
 S

L
A

B
.!

!

N
O

T
E

:

*!
A

L
L
 W

O
O

D
 T

R
IM

, 
W

O
O

D
 S

ID
IN

G
, 
A

N
D

 W
O

O
D

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 T
O

 !

!
B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

**
!

A
L
L
 W

IN
D

O
W

S
 T

O
 H

A
V

E
 N

E
W

 1
 X

 4
 W

O
O

D
 T

R
IM

 D
E

T
A

IL
 T

O
 !

!
M

A
T

C
H

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 (

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

) 
D

E
T
A

IL
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
L
L
 B

E
 !
!

!
W

O
O

D
 W

IT
H

 W
H

IT
E

 F
IN

IS
H

 M
E

T
A

L
 C

L
A

D
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

W
IN

D
O

W
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L
E

1
.!

6
'-
4
" 

X
 4

'-
8
"

2
.!

3
'-
0
" 

X
 3

'-
0
"

3
.!

3
'-
0
" 

X
 4

'-
0
"

4
.!

5
'-
6
" 

X
 2

'-
5
"

5
.!

3
'-
0
" 

X
 3

'-
0
"

6
.!

6
'-
0
" 

X
 4

'-
0
"

7
.!

6
'-
0
" 

X
 4

'-
0
"

8
.!

3
'-
6
" 

X
 2

'-
5
"

9
.!

6
'-
0
" 

X
 4

-0
"

-22-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf



21

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

K
'D

 B
Y

:

A
2
.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K
D

A
T

E

©
 2

0
1
4

N
W

D
D

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

T
  

4
/1

7
/1

4

  
5

/1
/1

4
R

E
V

. 
1

R
E

V
. 
2

  
7

/1
7

/1
4

/Users/dda4imac12/Dropbox/Projects/French- Capitola/127 Monterey Ave. R5 17.pln

P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
A

P
IT

O
LA

 C
O

T
TA

G
E

1
2
7
 M

o
n
te

re
y 

A
ve

C
ap

it
o
la

, 
C

A
, 
9
5
0
1
0

D
E

N
N

IS
 F

. 
D

IE
G

O

A
R

C
H

I
T

E

C
T

D
E

S
E

N

CI
L

E
T

A
T

S

O
F

C
L

A
I
F

O

*
*

C
 -

1
5
7
2
1

N

R

IA

R
E

N
 5

•3
1
•1

5

2
1 4

1
9

4

2

1
9

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

H
O

T
O

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

H
O

T
O

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

H
O

T
O

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

H
O

T
O

L
A

W
N

 V
IE

W

S
E

E
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 A

2
.1

 F
O

R
 L

A
B

E
L
S

-23-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf



21

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

K
'D

 B
Y

:

A
3
.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K
D

A
T

E

©
 2

0
1
4

N
W

D
D

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 S
E

T
  

4
/1

7
/1

4

  
5

/1
/1

4
R

E
V

. 
1

R
E

V
. 
2

  
7

/1
7

/1
4

/Users/dda4imac12/Dropbox/Projects/French- Capitola/127 Monterey Ave. R5 17.pln

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
A

P
IT

O
LA

 C
O

T
TA

G
E

1
2
7
 M

o
n
te

re
y 

A
ve

C
ap

it
o
la

, 
C

A
, 
9
5
0
1
0

D
E

N
N

IS
 F

. 
D

IE
G

O

A
R

C
H

I
T

E

C
T

D
E

S
E

N

CI
L

E
T

A
T

S

O
F

C
L

A
I
F

O

*
*

C
 -

1
5
7
2
1

N

R

IA

R
E

N
 5

•3
1
•1

5

7
'-
0
"

3'-2"
4
'-
8
"

6
'-
0
"

4
'-
8
"

1'-10"

79 8 5 1
0

1
1

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 R

O
O

F
 C

O
L
L

A
R

T
IE

 D
E

T
A

IL
 M

IS
S

IN
G

18

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

IM
 B

O
A

R
D

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

W
IN

D
O

W
 O

P
E

N
IN

G

4 1
027 1
6

1
62

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 P

O
S

T

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 L

IN
E

 O
F

 H
O

U
S

E

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
918 7 1
0

1
92

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 R

O
O

F
 C

O
L
L

A
R

 T
IE

 D
E

T
A

IL
 M

IS
S

IN
G

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
5

1
1

1
08 3 2 1
6

1
3

A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

B
E

Y
O

N
D

1
2
7
 M

O
N

T
E

R
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

5 1
1

1
6

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

 P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  
1
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  

1
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  

1
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 E
A

S
T

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

S
C

A
L
E

: 
1
/4

" 
  
=

  
  

1
'-
0
"

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
E

S
T

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
T

E
S

1
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 S
ID

IN
G

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN
. 
T

O
 B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 !

!
W

H
IT

E

2
.!

W
IN

D
O

W
S

 I
N

S
T
A

L
L
E

D
 I

N
 1

9
8
6
 A

L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S

!
(D

A
S

H
E

D
 L

IN
E

S
) 

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
.

!
S

E
E

 R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L
A

N
 S

H
E

E
T

 1
. 

(1
9
8
6
 A

L
T

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
)

3
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 W
IN

D
O

W
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

. 
(N

O
. 

9
-1

1
)*

*

4
.!

N
E

W
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 I
N

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

 (
N

O
. 

6
-8

)*
*!

5
.!

N
E

W
 W

O
O

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 I
N

 N
E

W
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
 (

N
O

.1
-4

)*
*!

6
.!

N
E

W
 3

' X
 3

' W
IN

D
O

W
 T

O
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

 (
N

O
.5

) 
**

7
.!

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 A

T
T

IC
 V

E
N

T
S

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

8
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
F

 E
A

V
E

 O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

S
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

9
.!

N
E

W
 R

O
O

F
 C

O
L
L

A
R

 T
IE

 D
E

T
A

IL
 @

 E
A

V
E

S
 (

M
IS

S
IN

G
 !
!

!
H

IS
T

O
R

IC
 F

E
A

T
U

R
E

 B
E

IN
G

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
D

)

1
0

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

R
IC

K
 (

1
9
8
6
) 

W
A

IN
S

C
O

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

1
1
.!

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
E

V
E

L
 L

A
P

 S
ID

IN
G

 W
A

IN
S

C
O

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

 A
N

D
 !

!
T

O
 B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

1
2

.!
N

E
W

 B
E

V
E

L
 L

A
P

 S
ID

IN
G

 T
O

 M
A

T
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 T
O

 B
E

 !

!
P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

1
3

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

R
IC

K
 P

A
V

IN
G

 T
O

 R
E

M
A

IN

1
4

.!
N

E
W

 H
E

A
V

Y
 A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 R
O

O
F

IN
G

. 
!

!

!
G

A
F

 T
IM

B
E

R
L
IN

E
 H

D
. 

C
O

L
O

R
: 

'W
E

A
T

H
E

R
E

D
 W

O
O

D
'  

(T
Y

P
.)

1
5

.!
R

E
M

O
V

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 H

A
N

D
R

A
IL

1
6

.!
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
P

P
E

R
 G

U
T

T
E

R
 &

 D
O

W
N

S
P

O
U

T
 T

O
 R

E
M

A
IN

1
7

.!
N

E
W

 W
O

O
D

 E
N

T
R

Y
 D

O
O

R
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E

1
8

.!
N

E
W

 B
R

IC
K

 P
O

R
C

H

1
9

.!
R

E
M

O
V

E
 D

O
O

R
 A

N
D

 F
R

A
M

E

N
O

T
E

:

*!
A

L
L
 W

O
O

D
 T

R
IM

, 
W

O
O

D
 S

ID
IN

G
, 
A

N
D

 W
O

O
D

 S
H

IN
G

L
E

 T
O

 !

!
B

E
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 W

H
IT

E
.

**
!

A
L
L
 W

IN
D

O
W

S
 T

O
 H

A
V

E
 N

E
W

 1
 X

 4
 W

O
O

D
 T

R
IM

 D
E

T
A

IL
 T

O
 !

!
M

A
T

C
H

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 (

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

) 
D

E
T
A

IL
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
L
L
 B

E
 !
!

!
W

O
O

D
 W

IT
H

 W
H

IT
E

 F
IN

IS
H

 M
E

T
A

L
 C

L
A

D
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

-24-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf



FOR REFERENCE ONLY

-25-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-26-



 

 

 

 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS REVIEW 

 

 

 

PROPOSED REHABILITATION PROJECT 

of a 

Contributor to the Six Sisters – Lawn Way Historic District, 

a National Register-Listed Historic District 

 
 

Project Title:  

Capitola Cottage 

127 Monterey Avenue, Capitola 

(Parcel Number 035-244-03) 

Capitola, Santa Cruz County 

California 

 

 

For: 

 

 City of Capitola  

Attn: Katie Cattan, AICP, Senior Planner 

Community Development Department 

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, CA 95010 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 
A R C H I V E S  &  A R C H I T E C T U R E ,  L L C  

PO Box 1332 

San Jose, CA  95109 

408.369.5683 Vox 

408.228.0762 Fax 

 

Leslie A. G. Dill, Partner and Historic Architect 

 

 

June 26, 2014 

July 23, 2014 Revised 

-27-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



2 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Executive Summary 

The proposed project meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards). The 

analysis is described more fully in the report below. 

 

Report Intent 

Archives & Architecture, LLC (A&A), was retained by City of Capitola Community Development 

Department to conduct a Secretary of the Interior’s Standards Review of a proposed commercial-to-

residential modification at a historic house that is identified as a contributing structure to the National 

Register-listed ―Six Sisters – Lawn Way Historic District‖ in downtown Capitola, California. A&A was 

asked to review the exterior elevations, plans, and site plan of the project to determine if the proposed 

project is in compliance with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards). The 

Standards are understood to be a common set of guidelines for the review of historic buildings and are 

used by many communities during the environmental review process to determine the potential impact of 

a project on an identified resource.  

 

Qualifications   

Leslie A. G. Dill, Partner of the firm Archives & Architecture, has a Master of Architecture with a 

certificate in Historic Preservation from the University of Virginia. She is licensed in California as an 

architect. Ms. Dill is listed with the California Office of Historic Preservation as meeting the requirements 

to perform identification, evaluation, registration, and treatment activities within the professions of 

Historic Architect and Architectural Historian in compliance with state and federal environmental laws. 

The Northwest Information Center utilizes the criteria of the National Park Service as outlined in 36 CFR 

Part 61. 

 

Review Methodology 

Leslie Dill reviewed the National Register Nomination Forms, dated January 1987, and pertinent sections 

of the Draft Context Statement, from 2004, provided by the City of Capitola. The City also provided a 

reference copy of the retail shop plans from 1986. An historic photograph was included within the 

architectural plans, which served as an excellent resource. Ms. Dill then reviewed the proposed planning 

application submittal design, electronically forwarded as a set of sheets ( A0.0, A2.1, A2.2, and A3.1), 

dated April 17, 2014, from the architect, Dennis Diego, Architect, AIA, according to the Standards. Ms. 

Dill listed minor suggestions in report form; these were reviewed by the applicant and discussed at a 

meeting in Capitola, and the design was subsequently revised. This revised report is an evaluation of the 

drawing set forwarded electronically and dated July 17, 2014. 

 

Disclaimers 

This report addresses the project plans in terms of historically compatible design of the exterior design 

only. The Consultant has not undertaken and will not undertake an evaluation or report on the structural 

conditions or other related safety hazards that might or might not exist at the site and building, and will 

not review the proposed project for structural soundness or other safety concerns. The Consultant has not 

undertaken analysis of the site to evaluate the potential for subsurface resources. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

Character of the Existing Resource 

The National Register nomination for the historic district includes the following information: ―…Six 

Sisters-Lawn Way Historic District encompasses 16 building, including four duplexes and one triplex 

situated around a cross-axial village green known as Lawn Way. The one and two-story buildings are 

-28-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



3 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

primarily of frame construction with weatherboard and wood shake exteriors. Architecturally, the district 

incorporates two distinct building types—late nineteenth-century, two-story Victorian apartments which 

look out onto the ocean, and early twentieth century, primarily one-story, gable-front cottages, which face 

onto and line Lawn Way… The cottages lining Lawn Way are uniform in scale and character but diverse 

in detail, texture and fenestration. While the exterior walls are all flush with the public walkways, creating 

an uninterrupted and formal regiment of structures, there is a mix of wide overhanging eaves and no 

eaves, of weatherboard and wood shingle siding and of recessed, chamfered and flush doorways. Most of 

these structures were built between 1910 and 1914…‖ The nomination describes the block as, ―…a single 

building consisting of three separate sections, creating a symmetrical composition. Built ca. 1910-1914.‖ 

House #21 (the subject property) is described as: ―One-story, former wood-frame residence with wood 

shingle siding above weatherboard trim; this end unit now houses a shop. The medium-pitched gable 

faces (East) Lawn Way and has wide overhanging eaves with plain bargeboards. Most of this unit’s 

windows and the brick and frame southeast corner of the building are modern additions.‖ 

 

Summary of the Proposed Project 

The proposed project, as presented in the current set of architectural drawings noted above, includes the 

rehabilitation of the subject house, including the replacement of non-historic windows and doors, the 

restoration of some historic trim, and the reconfiguration of the space from retail use into a single-family 

residence. 

 

 

SECRETARY’S STANDARD’S REVIEW: 

 

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards), originally published in 1977, and 

revised in 1990, include ten standards that present a recommended approach to repair, while preserving 

those portions or features that convey a resource’s historical, cultural, or architectural values. 

Accordingly, Standards states that, ―Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making possible a 

compatible use for a property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 

features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values‖. Following is a summary of the 

review with a list of the Standards and associated analysis for this project: 

 

Analysis 

 

1. “A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal 

change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.” 

 

 Analysis: The building has been a retail shop and is being converted back to a single-family 

residence, its historic use. 

 

 

2. “The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of 

historic materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 

characterize a property will be avoided.” 

 

 Analysis: The parts of the property proposed for removal are not identified as historically 

significant. The spatial relationships and spaces embodied in the historic design are not adversely 

impacted by the proposed minor demolition and new construction.  

 

 

 

-29-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



4 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

3. “Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 

that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or 

architectural elements from other historic properties, will not be undertaken.” 

 

 Analysis: One proposed alteration is the restoration of the roof collar ties and notched bargeboard 

ends. This restoration is based on historic photographic and physical evidence. It is appropriate 

that only the original gable end include the historic detail, and that the east gable not have the 

detail. This simplified bargeboard design differentiates the addition from the historic house (See 

Standard 9). The features being restored would not be considered conjectural features. 

 

 There are no other alterations are proposed that might be mistaken for original features. 

 

 

4. “Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be 

retained and preserved.” 

 

 Analysis: For this report, it is understood that no existing changes to the building(s) have acquired 

historic significance in their own right.  

 

 

5. “Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved.” 

 

 Analysis: The original windows of the historic house were not preserved in previous alterations. 

The replacement of the focal window unit near the southwest corner at the south elevation is an 

opportunity to restore the original scale and size and configuration, and this is proposed. The 

original unit can be identified in the historic photograph, and the size should be apparent within 

the historic wood frame. This window will also restore the symmetrical placement of the focal 

window at 106 Lawn Way. The restored window is compatible with the Standards in that the new 

window unit replicates the location, size, material, and muntin pattern of the historic window. 

 

 All other historic materials and features are proposed for preservation, including siding and trim. 

 

 

6. “Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the 

old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features 

will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.” 

 

 Analysis: The project plans include a general note that addresses this project as a historic 

preservation project, calling attention to the Standards. 

 

 

7. “Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 

means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used.” 

 

 Analysis: No chemical treatments are shown as proposed in this project. It is recommended that 

all proposed preservation treatments (e.g., epoxy wood consolidant and paint preparation 

techniques), be identified prior to submittal of the building permit drawing set. 

 

-30-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



5 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

8. “Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be 

disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.” 

 

 Analysis: Archeological resources are not evaluated in this report. 

 

 

9. “New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction will not destroy historic 

materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work 

shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, 

features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and 

its environment.” 

 

 Analysis: Although there are no new additions planned, the proposed project will alter previously 

constructed additions. The proposed alterations are compatible with this standard in that they 

reinforce the differentiation and compatibility between the original cottage and the previous 

addition and porch enclosure.  

 

 The eastern portion of the building is an addition, and is proposed to remain both differentiated 

and compatible with the original house design. The brick wainscoting that wraps the existing 

addition, including the portion of brick wainscoting that extends to the west in front of the former 

recessed porch, provides this differentiation, including the proposed brick wainscoting at the 

north elevation (at the closure of the existing commercial doorway). The existing addition 

remains compatible due to its use of similar shingle cladding above the wainscoting, the scale of 

the windows and trim, and the scale of the brick pattern with respect to the size and scale of the 

original materials. As noted above, the gable end trim will remain slightly differentiated from the 

original historic design. 

 

 The windows near the southeast corner of the south (front) elevation are in a ribbon that spans the 

historic porch and the recent addition. The proposed design includes a window post in the former 

porch post location that divides the ribbon into two units and expresses the former southeast 

corner of the house. This visual element appropriately emphasizes the conventional structural 

framing beneath the roof support. The ribbon of small transom windows, above the new windows 

at the former recessed porch area and the recent addition, provide a rhythm and scale to the 

composition that is compatible with the historic house and neighborhood. The paired windows at 

the former porch also provide visual balance for the focal window unit being restored in its off-

center historic location. 

 

 The high accent windows proposed for the east façade gable end are part of the existing addition. 

These are appropriately differentiated in the gable-height placement and compatible in scale and 

size with the overall composition of the house. 

 

 The non-original windows within the historic east wall are not proposed for alteration. 

 

 The north side wall has no extant windows. On this wall it is appropriate to add new windows 

where they do not present a sense of false historicism, are differentiated and are compatible. The 

small amount of siding that will be removed is a repetitive character-defining feature, and its 

removal does not adversely impact the original composition. The proposed paired unit and the 

high accent windows share the differentiated vocabulary of single-lite windows from the other 

proposed new and existing windows at the east addition. The size and shape of the windows is 

compatible with the historic windows, and in-scale with the overall design. The placement of the 

-31-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



6 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

windows also visually preserves the historic house corner as a conventionally framed wall 

beneath the end of the historic gable. 

 

 The new front door has the scale and size that is compatible with the original house. Because it is 

a new door in an added area of the house (the hyphen), it is also acceptable that it not match or 

restore any particular design. 

 

 

10. “New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 

manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 

property and its environment would be unimpaired.” 

 

 Analysis: The essential form and integrity of the historic property would be maintained in this 

project. 

 

 

Conclusion 

The proposed design is compatible with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.  

 

-32-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf



-33-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Photos.pdf



-34-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Photos.pdf



-35-

Item #: 5.A. 127 Monterey Ave Historic Photos.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-36-



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  AUGUST 7th, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 111 Central Ave   #14-099  APN: 036-112-08 

Design Permit for a second story addition and Variance for the required parking at the 
existing Single Family Residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which 
is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Anh Do 
Representative: Devlin Jones, filed 6/24/14 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a Design Permit, Variance, and Coastal Development Permit application 
for a 565 square-foot addition to the second story of an existing, single-family home located at 111 
Central Avenue. The project is located in the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning District. A second story 
addition to a home requires approval of a design permit by the Planning Commission.  The applicant 
is also requesting a variance to the onsite parking requirement. 
 
BACKGROUND 

 On July 9th, 2014, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application. City 
Architect Representative, Derek Van Alstine, encouraged the applicant to work with staff in 
resolving the FAR and to pursue a variance for the parking.  

 City Historian Representative, Carolyn Swift, had no comment on the proposal. 

 City Landscape Architect Representative, Craig Waltz, recommended the applicant pursue a 
variance for parking so as to preserve the existing Maple Tree on site. 

 City Building Official, Mark Wheeler, advised the applicant that the second floor walls need 1-
hour applications. 

 City Public Works Official, Steve Jesberg, stated that he would like to see one downspout 
directed to a landscaped area, as well as permeable pavement used for the driveway if it is 
extended to provide the additional parking spot.  

 City Staff Planner, Ryan Safty, explained that the application exceeded the maximum Floor 
Area Ratio and that the parking requirement was not met within the onsite parking.  Planner 
Safty explained that the applicant could reduce to the floor area of the home to 2000 square 
feet to comply with parking onsite.  

 
The applicant amended the plans to comply with the maximum floor area of ratio of 53% (2,120 sf).  
The applicant decided to apply for a variance to parking rather than bring the floor area of the home 
down to 2000 square feet.   
 

-37-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



 

 
Site and Structural Data 
The proposal is non-conforming with the parking standards within the R-1 (Single Family) Zoning 
District. The applicant is requesting a variance from these standards.   
 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 4,000  sq. ft. 

Maximum FAR Allowed 53% 2,120  sq. ft. 

Proposed FAR 53% 2,120  sq. ft. 

Proposed Square Footage 

Existing 1st Floor Area    866 sq. ft. 

Existing Garage    258 sq. ft.  

Existing 2nd Floor Area    431 sq. ft. 

Proposed 2nd Floor Addition    565 sq. ft.  

Total Living Area 2,120 sq. ft. 

Floor Area 2,120 sq. ft. 

Set Back 

 R-1 District Proposed 

Front 15’ 20’ 

Front Garage 20’ 20’ 

Rear 20% depth of lot: 20’ 20’ 

Side Yard 10% width of lot: 4’ 4’(L) + 4’(R)  

Building Height 

 R-1 District Proposed 

Residential 25'-0" 23’-5” 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential 
(2,001 sq. ft. – 
2,600 sq. ft.) 

3 spaces total 
Minimum 1 covered 
2 uncovered 

2 spaces total  
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

 
 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is proposing a 565 square foot addition to the second story of the existing home. The 
second story addition consists of a new master bedroom and bathroom, an office, and a bedroom. 
The plan also calls for a bathroom remodel on the first floor and to enclose the existing single-car 
garage. These two modifications are internal and do not increase the building’s FAR. In addition, the 
applicant would like to replace the existing 90 square feet front entrance deck (on the southern side of 
the home) with 245 square feet of concrete pavers, and replace the existing 140 square feet rear yard 
deck with a 365 square feet Ipe deck to accommodate  a hot tub and gazebo. The deck is not 
calculated as a part of the FAR due to the fact that it is less than thirty inches in height 
(§17.15.100.C.5). The gazebo will be 9’-6” in height and will provide shade to the 49 sq ft hot tub. The 
gazebo is setback 8’ from the rear property line. (Attachment A) The proposal conforms with all 
applicable zoning regulations.   
 
The exterior of the residence currently includes 12” redwood horizontal lap-siding that is brown in 
color and a composition shingle roof of similar color. The applicant is proposing to reuse and refinish 
the existing redwood lap siding along the exterior of the home. The second story additions will contain 
dark-gray smooth stucco finish with a ½” aluminum screed to break up the façade. The front, right 
(north), and left (south) elevations use a combination of the redwood lap siding and the gray stucco to 
add more architectural character to the home. The front façade’s second story windows will be 

-38-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



 

replaced with two black aluminum, double-pane windows to match the existing. In addition, the 
existing garage door will be replaced with a garage door with opec glass panels and the existing steel 
entry gate will be replaced to match the new garage door. The applicant is proposing metacrilic 
roofing for the front façade, with a down spout running from it down to splash blocks and erosion 
resistant vegetation. (Attachment A)   
 
Parking 
The proposed 565 square foot addition will create a 2,120 sq ft home. Per Capitola Municipal Section 
17.15.130, “for residences two thousand one to two thousand six hundred square feet three spaces 
are required, one of which must be covered.” The application currently only proposes 2 parking 
spaces; one of which is covered by the garage and the other uses the existing 20’ x 10’-6” driveway. 
Per Capitola Municipal Code Section 17.15.130.E, “no additional square footage exceeding 10 
percent of the existing gross floor area may be added to an existing single-family residential unit, 
unless minimum parking requirements are met.” In order to create the one additional uncovered 
parking spot, the applicant would need to widen the driveway to the south and remove one of the front 
yard Maple Trees. Due to the desire to preserve the tree, the applicant has decided to apply for a 
variance to the parking requirement rather than decrease the square footage of the home by an 
additional 120 square feet. The reduction of the 120 square feet to the proposal would reduce the 
parking requirement to two spots, which they currently meet on site.     
 
Variance 
Pursuant to §17.66.090, the Planning Commission, on the basis of the evidence submitted at the 
hearing, may grant a variance permit when it finds: 
 
A. That because of special circumstances applicable to subject property, including size, shape, 

topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this title is found to deprive subject 
property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical zone 
classification; 
  

B.  That the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which subject property is 
situated. 

 
There is an existing 18-inch diameter maple tree in the front yard. (Attachment B) The maple tree is 
located 4 feet to the side of existing driveway. To accommodate the required third parking space 
onsite, the maple tree must be removed. The applicant would like to preserve the tree. The applicant 
could comply with the municipal code by either: removing the tree and planting two new trees on the 
property or by removing 120 square feet of the addition.  Staff is unable to make findings to support 
the variance due to the applicant’s ability to remedy the code issue through the planting of two new 
trees.  Staff recommends requiring parking onsite and planting two replacement trees, as can be seen 
in Condition # 2.   
    
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures provided that the 
addition will not result in an increase of more than 50% of the existing structure or more than 2,500 
square feet, whichever is less. This project involves a 565 square foot addition to an existing home 
located in the single family residential (R-1) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #14-099 less the variance to 
the parking requirement, based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 

-39-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



 

 
 
CONDITIONS 

 

1. The project approval consists of construction of a 565 square-foot addition to an existing single 
family home. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 4,000 square foot property is 53% (2,120 
square feet).  The total FAR of the home with new addition is 53% with a total of 2,120 square 
feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is approved as 
indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on August 
7th, 2014, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during 
the hearing.   
 

2. The site plan must be modified to include three onsite parking spaces.  If the existing maple 
tree is removed, two new trees must be planted consistent with the requirements of the 
Capitola Tree Ordinance.   

 
3. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans 

 
4. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

5. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall 
be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall 
be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
6. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #14-099 shall be 
paid in full. 

 
9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 

approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 

-40-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



 

 
12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 

verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

 
14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 

 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 
be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 

 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 
of public view on non-collection days.  

 
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning 
district .  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 

 

-41-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning 
district.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the 
character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed addition to the single-family 
residence compliments the existing single-family homes in the neighborhood in use, mass and 
scale, materials, height, and architecture.   

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves an addition to an existing single-family residence in the R-1 (single family 

residence) Zoning District.  Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor additions to 
existing single-family residences in a residential zone.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Coastal Findings 
C.  Photos of Existing Maple Tree 

 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty  

Assistant Planner  
                  
 
 
 
 
 

 

-42-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf



-43-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf



-44-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf



-45-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf



-46-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf



-47-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-48-



  
 

      
PROJECT APPLICATION #14-099 

111 CENTRAL AVENUE, CAPITOLA 
ADDITION TO SINGLE FAMILY HOME 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
• The proposed project is located at 111 Central Avenue.  The home is not located in an 

area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 

-49-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 
• The proposed project is located along Central Avenue.  No portion of the project is located 

along the shoreline or beach.   
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• There is not history of public use on the subject lot.     

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

• The proposed project is located on private property on Central Avenue.  The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 
recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 

-50-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas.   

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

• The project is located on a flat lot.   

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

• The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 

-51-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

project 
  

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

• The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.     
SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 
uses, where feasible. 

• The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   
c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 
• The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   

 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision of public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 
 

• The project involves the construction of a single family home.  The project complies 
with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian 
access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic improvements.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 
• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 

Municipal Code.   
  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 

will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   
 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 
• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 
• The project is located within close proximity of the Capitola fire department.  Water is 

-52-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

available at the location.   
 (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 
• The project is for a single family home.  The GHG emissions for the project are projected 

at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of 
the soquel creek water district. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   

 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 
• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established policies. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 

Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 
• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 

control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 
• Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 

project.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code.   
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 
• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with geological, 

flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  
• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 

-53-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

  
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 
• This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single Family zoning district.  
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 
• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 

project development review and development procedures. 
 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

• The project site is located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

-54-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf



Attachment B: Maple Tree 

 

-55-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Tree Pictures.pdf



Attachment B: Maple Tree 

 

-56-

Item #: 5.B. 111 Central Ave Tree Pictures.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  AUGUST 7, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Conditions of Approval for Commercial Permits 

Planning Commission review of Standard Conditions of Approval.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Over the years, conditions of approval have been developed by City Staff and the Planning 
Commission to provide applicants with clarification of additional requirements that must be adhered to 
during the development process.  These conditions have been commonly applied to applications but 
not formally reviewed by the Planning Commission as “standard” conditions of approval.  All 
conditions of approval must be followed by the applicant from the time of application approval by 
Planning Commission through the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the Building Official.   
 
Conditions of approval are included for all types of applications reviewed by the Planning 
Commission, including: design permits, master sign programs, conditional use permits, condominium 
conversions, and planned developments.  The focus of the Planning Commission discussion will be 
on standard conditions of approval of Design Permits and Conditional Use Permits for commercial 
additions and new construction.  Standard conditions of approval are conditions applicable to all 
applications, unless there are extraordinary or unique circumstances.  If additional circumstances 
exists which require mitigation or specific project conditions, special conditions of approval are added 
during the application review.  As time permits, Staff will bring various standard conditions to the 
Planning Commission for review relative to other types of development applications (modifications to 
historic resources, subdivisions, etc.), with the ultimate objective of creating a comprehensive 
conditions of approval manual.   
 
Staff reviewed the standard conditions of approvals typically applied to commercial design permits 
and commercial conditional use permits in Capitola.  Some of the standard conditions have been 
edited to provide clarity of the process and remove redundancy.  Additional language has been added 
to prevent undocumented changes in the field that deviate from the approved set of plans.  An effort 
has been made to designate the appropriate City Department or Division responsible for review and 
approval of additional submittal requirements. Also, the order of conditions has been revised to better 
represent the order in which items must be completed.  The draft standard conditions of approval are 
included as Attachment A.   
 
Staff requests direction from the Planning Commission on recommended revisions. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Draft Conditions of Approval for commercial additions and new construction  
 
P:\Planning Commission\2014 Meeting Packets\07-7-14\StandardConditions.docx  

-57-

Item #: 6.A. Standard Conditions of Approval Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-58-



CONDITIONS 
1. The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit Design Permit and Sign Permit 

for type of use, allow outdoor seating, and allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for the 
property located at insert address. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the 
final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on date, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.   

 
2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site 
improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning 
Commission approval.   
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, rooftop equipment must be shown on plans 
and not be visible to the general public.  Any necessary roof screening is to match the color 
of the building.  Rooftop equipment must be built within the allowable zone height.  Plans 
for any necessary screening shall be submitted within the building permit submittal.  Air-
conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall fall within the allowable city 
permitted decibel levels.  

 
5. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

6. At time of submittal for building permit review, all Planning fees associated with permit # 
shall be paid in full.  
 

7. At time of submittal for building permit review, the applicant shall pay the appropriate fees in 
compliance with Chapter 2.58:  Funding the Public Art Program.  This is applicable to all 
non-residential projects with a total building permit valuation of at least two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars, excluding land acquisition. 
 

8. At time of submittal for building permit review, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the 
Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and 
details of irrigation systems.   
 

9. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.   
 

10. At time of submittal for building permit review, the applicant must provide documentation of 
plan approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, ___ 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
11. At time of submittal for building permit review, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and 

erosion control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The 

-59-

Item #: 6.A. Standard Conditions for Commercial.pdf



plans shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

12. At time of submittal for building permit review, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all 
applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, 
including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

13. At time of submittal for building permit review, the applicant shall indicate on such plans the 
area of trash enclosure and materials.  The trash enclosure shall be made of sturdy solid 
masonry material, with trash receptacles screened from view and compatible with the color 
and materials of the project.  The enclosure shall be maintained to provide a clean and 
sanitary area.  
 

14. (If USE is loud) At time of submittal for building permit review, sound proofing must be 
included within the plans along shared walls to protect the adjacent commercial use from 
noise impacts of the use. 
 

15. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official 
to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
16. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 

the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

17. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction 
noise shall be prohibited between the hours of 9 PM and 7:30 AM on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 

 
18. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall obtain an updated business license 

from the City of Capitola prior to operating within the new/expanded/converted area. 
  

19. Prior to granting of final occupancy, all landscape improvements and irrigation systems shall 
be installed.  Subsequently, all landscaping must be maintained and non –maintenance will 
be a basis for review by the Planning Commission.  
 

20. Prior to granting of final occupancy, all commercial uses with more than ten parking spaces 
shall provide for onsite bicycle parking. Bicycle racks must be capable of locking both the 
wheels and the frame of the bicycle and of supporting bicycles in an upright position. 
 

21. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 
 

22. For the duration of active permit, delivery hours shall be limited to 7:30 AM to 8 PM to 
minimize noise impacts to neighboring residents.  Delivery vehicles shall not be permitted to 
remain at idle during deliveries. 
 

-60-

Item #: 6.A. Standard Conditions for Commercial.pdf



23. For the duration of active permit, the approved parking associated with the use permit must 
be maintained and the approved number of parking spaces may not decrease.  Parking 
spaces shall be striped and maintained. Signage identifying employee parking shall also be 
provided. 

 
24. For the duration of the active permit, the proposed landscaping in the landscape plan shall 

be maintained and well kept.  Plants that fail to survive shall be replaced.    
 

25. For the duration of active permit, the business owner is responsible for obtaining an 
entertainment permit from the Police Department prior to any amplified noise on the site.  
Single event or annual permits are available through the Police Department.  An 
entertainment permit has not been approved within this application. 
 

26. (If application includes a CUP for outdoor dining/seating/display)  For the duration of active 
permit, the outdoor seating/dining/display is limited to the area identified on the plans as 
approved by the Planning Commission on date.  This area may not be expanded without an 
amendment to the Conditional Use Permit.  ADA access must be maintained within and 
around the designated outdoor seating/dining area.  
 

27. (If application does not include a CUP for outdoor dining/seating/display)  For the duration 
of active permit, no goods or services may be stored, displayed, and/or sold outside the 
commercial building.  Outdoor seating, dining, and display is limited to specific zones and 
requires approval of a conditional use permit by the Planning Commission.  A conditional 
use permit for the outdoor seating, dining, and/or display has not been approved within this 
application.   
 

28. (If awning exists) For the duration of active permit, the awnings shall be replaced when they 
show signs of deterioration, as determined by the Community Development Department. 

 
29. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

30. The conditional use permit will expire in the case where use and reliance on the 
conditional use permit has not been established within two years after the date of granting 
thereof.  Any interruption or cessation beyond the control of the property owner shall not 
result in the termination of such right or privilege. A permit shall be deemed to have been 
“used” when actual substantial, continuous activity has taken place upon the land pursuant 
to the permit. 

 
SIGNS 

31. (if signs are included with the application)  # signs have been approved by the Planning 
Commission.  The signs include wall sign, monument sign, projecting sign, etc..   Signs 
must be built and installed consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission 
on date.   
 

32. Sign illumination must comply with the standards of the sign ordinance and municipal code.  
No sign shall have an intensity of more than fifty foot-candles as measured from the ground 
level.  Animated signs and moving lights are prohibited.  
 

33. (If a sign violation exists) The existing sign violation must be removed prior to occupancy.   
 

-61-

Item #: 6.A. Standard Conditions for Commercial.pdf



34. (If no sign plans are submitted) The Planning Commission has not reviewed updated signs 
within this application.  Prior to installation of any new signs, an application for a sign permit 
must be submitted to the Community Development Department and approved by the 
appropriate authority. 

 

-62-

Item #: 6.A. Standard Conditions for Commercial.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT WORK PROGRAM   

Presentation on the Community Development Department Work Program 
   
 
BACKGROUND 
The Community Development Department (CDD) is responsible for administering the City’s building, 
current planning, advance planning, affordable housing, and code enforcement programs.  The 
purpose of this report is to present CDD’s work program to the Planning Commission, including 
ongoing projects and activities, future projects, and planned operational improvements.  Staff is not 
requesting any formal action from the Planning Commission; however, staff would appreciate the 
Commission’s input on the work program and any projects they would like to see prioritized.  Staff will 
subsequently present the work program to the City Council and will report any recommendations. 
 
DISCUSSION 
CDD has experienced significant change over the past three years, including termination of 
redevelopment, the resultant loss of redevelopment funds and staff, and a high degree of staff 
turnover in the Planning Division.  CDD has since stabilized, with appointments of a new Community 
Development Director, Senior Planner, and a ½-time Assistant Planner. 
 
During the past year, CDD has been in transition and has been primarily focused on maintaining its 
core business operations and completing the General Plan Update.  Now that the General Plan 
Update has been adopted, staff is charting a course to complete other important City initiatives. 
 
The CDD work program is based on the City’s continuing commitment to providing high quality and 
efficient customer service while balancing community, environmental, and economic interests.  The 
work program described herein is organized by the Department’s core functions:  building; current 
planning; advance planning; code enforcement; affordable housing; grant preparation and 
administration; and process and operational improvements.  Each function is outlined below with 
corresponding projects and initiatives.  A comprehensive list of projects is included as Attachment 1. 
 
Department Overview 
The CDD includes the Planning and Building Divisions and operates with an approximate annual 
budget of $695,000.  The Department includes 4.5 full-time equivalent staff, consisting of a 
Community Development Director, Senior Planner, Building Official, Building Inspector, and a ½-time 
Assistant Planner.  The Department is also supported by a part-time contract planner to help 
administer the City’s affordable housing programs and grant management.  To help manage workload 
peaks, CDD also supplements its in-house staff with contract employees, as needed, to help process 
discretionary project applications in a timely manner. 
 

-63-

Item #: 6.B. CDD Work Program - PC Staff Report.pdf



 

The Building Division provides plan check and building inspection services to promote safe 
construction and public welfare through compliance with the California Building Code and City 
ordinances.  The Building Division is also responsible for enforcing building permit violations, 
maintaining City codes, and overseeing the City’s Green Building Program.   
 
The Planning Division is responsible for processing discretionary permit applications; preparing and 
updating long-range planning documents; administering the City’s affordable housing programs; 
enforcing the zoning code; preparing and managing grants; and assisting with planning and 
development of City initiated projects.   

 
Building 
The Building Division issued 337 building permits with a total valuation over $11 million in fiscal year 
2013-14.  In addition to its daily building permit responsibilities, the Division is currently working on 
deploying a new and improved building permit tracking software system and will pursue the following 
longer-term projects: 
 

 Obtain ADA accessibility certification for the City’s Building Inspector; 

 Update the Green Building Ordinance in conjunction with the zoning code update; 

 Develop additional customer service handouts, FAQs, instructions, etc.; 

 Develop a web-based building permit cost calculator to enable customers to estimate permit costs 
from home; 

 Expand and improve website content to include additional resources and customer guidance. 
 
Current Planning 
Current Planning activities consist of processing discretionary permit applications, providing 
information and guidance to the public at the service counter, and planning and permitting City 
initiated projects.  In fiscal year 2013-14, the Planning Division issued 133 permits, including 52 which 
required public hearings before the Planning Commission and/or the City Council.  The majority of the 
City’s discretionary permits consist of single-family residences, tree removals, signs, fences, and 
commercial tenant improvements.  Although CDD doesn’t receive a high volume of complex and 
controversial projects, those that are submitted require significant staff time and resources. 
 
CDD currently has two major discretionary projects in process, the Monarch Cove Hotel and a condo 
conversion application of the Antigua Apartments, which requires a General Plan Amendment, a Local 
Coastal Program (LCP) Amendment, Municipal Code Amendments, and a Tentative Map.  Potential 
future projects include the Village Hotel, a new and expanded library, redevelopment of the City Hall 
property, Rispin Mansion improvements, and relocation of the Capitola Mall transit center. 
 
Advance Planning 
The City embarked on a multi-year effort in 2010 to complete updates to its general plan, zoning code, 
LCP, and prepare a Climate Action Plan (CAP).  The City Council adopted the General Plan Update 
on June 26, 2014; however, work on the zoning code, LCP, and CAP are ongoing and will require 
significant staff time and resources to complete.  Work on the zoning code and CAP will continue 
through the end of this fiscal year.  The LCP update must be adopted by the Coastal Commission and 
will likely require an additional 9-15 months following City Council adoption. 
 
CDD is also currently working with the Finance Department and a consultant to restructure the permit 
fee schedule in a cost neutral manner.  The objective of this effort is to provide customers with more 
cost certainty while maintaining current permit revenues.  To accomplish this goal, CDD will propose 
to convert many deposit accounts to flat fees, eliminate obsolete fees, and reduce initial deposit costs 
where appropriate.  A revised fee structure will be presented to the City Council this fall. 
 

-64-

Item #: 6.B. CDD Work Program - PC Staff Report.pdf



 

The City’s Housing Element must be updated by December, 2015.  During the next 2-3 months, CDD 
will issue a Request for Proposals to solicit interest from qualified planning firms to assist with 
preparation of the Housing Element Update.   
 
The time and effort required to complete the zoning code, LCP, CAP, and Housing Element, in 
addition to ongoing current planning and code enforcement responsibilities, will fully consume 
available staff resources through the foreseeable future.  Longer term, CDD intends to implement 
action items contained in the General Plan Update (Attachment 2), including development of a historic 
resource preservation program, new residential and commercial design guidelines, and updates to the 
Subdivision and Noise Ordinances. 
 
Once completed, the CAP will also include a number of action items which will need to be completed, 
including public outreach and education and ordinance amendments to promote sustainability, 
improved energy efficiency, decreased water consumption, and solid waste reduction. 
 
Code Enforcement 
The City administers a complaint-based code enforcement program, unless a code violation is 
observed which presents a life and safety hazard.  The Building Division handles code issues related 
to building permits and the Planning Division responds to zoning compliance issues.  CDD routinely 
has several simultaneous and active code enforcement cases.  Although the majority of code 
enforcement customers are cooperative and readily correct code issues, those who are more resistant 
often place significant demands on staff resources.  
 
Affordable Housing 
With termination of redevelopment in 2011, the City lost its primary funding source for affordable 
housing and its Redevelopment and Housing Planner position.  Notwithstanding, the City continues to 
provide funding for affordable housing activities, including the Security Deposit and Emergency 
Assistance Programs.  In addition, CDD monitors affordable housing loans executed prior to 2011, the 
sales of inclusionary units and enforces regulatory agreements with four of the City’s mobile home 
parks, including certifications to ensure prospective buyers meet applicable income and asset limits.   
 
CDD is also responsible for ongoing monitoring of the City’s affordable housing commitments. For two 
decades, with a combination of redevelopment funds and grants from CDBG and HOME funds, the 
City provided financial assistance to help four mobile home parks become resident-owned, and 
provided substantial funding for other affordable housing projects such as The Dakota and Bay 
Avenue Senior Apartments.  The City also made individual housing loans to lower-income residents, 
including approximately 75 Rehabilitation loans, 50 small loans to assist lower-income mobile home 
park residents purchase shares in their new resident-owned cooperatives, and approximately 20 First-
Time Homebuyer loans.  Currently, CDD works with the Finance Department to monitor 70 
outstanding housing loans.  Through the Affordable Inclusionary Ordinance, 14 resale and income 
restricted units were created.  CDD monitors unit sales as well as ongoing owner residency. 
 
In February 2014, CDD applied for a new CDBG to fund a citywide Residential Rehabilitation and 
Mortgage Assistance Program.  Grant awards will be announced this summer. 
 
Grant Preparation and Administration 
CDD prepares, manages, and administers the majority of City grant programs.  In recent years, CDD 
successfully obtained grant monies to help pay for the Bay Avenue Senior Apartments, the Local 
Hazard Mitigation Plan, and the General Plan Update.  Recently, the City was awarded a $383,000 
grant to help fund park improvements at the Rispin Mansion and submitted a CDBG application to 
fund affordable housing programs.  Staff is actively seeking grant opportunities for a number of other 
projects, including improvements to the Stockton Avenue Bridge, relocation of emergency responders 
out of the flood and tsunami zones, and wharf improvements.   

-65-

Item #: 6.B. CDD Work Program - PC Staff Report.pdf



 

 
 
Process and Operational Improvements 
CDD intends to implement a number of process and operational improvements over time to enhance 
customer service, transparency, efficiency, and consistency with the planning process.  Unlike other 
projects and programs which typically have a defined start and completion, process and operational 
improvements are continual, ongoing efforts to enhance organizational performance.  Accordingly, it is 
expected that the Department will always have opportunities for improvement and will continually seek 
a better way to conduct our business and serve the public. 
 
Currently, staff is working on developing a Permit Processing Guide to help customers understand the 
discretionary permit process and associated time and costs.  Staff is also working on developing a 
Conditions of Approval Manual to help inform the public, customers, and decision-makers of typical 
conditions placed on various permit types while also ensuring consistency between applications.   
 
Some of the longer-term process and operational improvements include: 

 Improve CDD website to include comprehensive list of applications, guidance documents, useful 
links and information, permits on-file, etc.; 

 Develop applicant guidance documents for various permit types, frequently asked questions, etc.   

 Develop internal operating procedures and checklists for discretionary permit processing and 
affordable housing programs to improve accuracy and consistency; 

 Prepare comprehensive affordable housing guidelines to document all of the City’s programs, 
administration, and locations of affordable units; 

 Create improved Planning Commission staff report format to encourage thorough and consistent 
reports; 

 Develop CEQA guidelines, including thresholds of significance, to improve consistency, 
transparency, and to streamline the environmental review process. 

 
 
CEQA REVIEW 
The CDD work program is not a project as defined by CEQA; therefore, CEQA review is not required.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission accept the presentation and offer comments. 
 
 
 
 
 

Report Prepared By:  Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. CDD Project List 
2. General Plan Update Action Items 

-66-

Item #: 6.B. CDD Work Program - PC Staff Report.pdf



�����������	�
��
�������
����������
�������
������������
�������

��� �� ���� ��� !" !#$% &!' �#% #(� �) !* �) +,!
- .,% &!
/ #% ,% +,!0 ,+1 !" �2) ! / #,! &% !3$+#)4 562% .0 5 &!7
84* �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!:( +#,$ ;8<

���� �� ���

= #(�% #(
4 !#)% #(' �#% #(� �) !* �) +,!
84* �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!:( +#,$ ;8<

�>? @���� A�? BC�> �C

- .,% &!
<% #+2% D!2% $,�9 ��,!#,% +2  !) 5.,% �#�!+$5 !$ ;� !$!#,,�� ���% $$% �#�#E #&%  �#�!#,84 �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!:( +#,$ ;8<

� BFG? CH�> �@�C�* �) +,!I �5$% #(E2 !�!#,�! $,+,! !J5%  !�!#,$ K
L 5!L !.!�6 ! MNOPQ6 !(% #3� 1

% #9 +22MNORS
/ $$5!� �#$52 ,+#,T<4

84 �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!$ ;8<

� �G?� �C�? �> �C�� B@@�UA? �> � �G? HC� F?� �>? C�G* �) +,!� !#, +2V%22 +(!+#)RO $,- &!) !$% (#(5%) !2% #!$+#)% #.� �� +,!% #,�#!3

.��� !" !#$% &! !$%) !#,% +2 +#) .���! .% +2 (5%) !2% #!$
< �22 �3% #('=* �) +,!/) !#,%9 79 5#)% #($�5 .!$ ;"%  !.�#$52 ,+#, ;%) !#,%9 7�562% .�5, !+." � �.!$$

84 �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!$ ;��$$%62 ! ( +#,$ ;8<

�? G�BU? A� U�G�UW��? BC � U�? C�CA��C�
 BU� F?� �>? C�G�  !+,!� �.!) 5 !$+#) � �,�.�2 $9 �  !&% !3% #(� ���$+2 $,�+2 ,! X) !����,!#,% +22 7"% $,� % .

$, 5.,5 !$ K0 5 &!7+#)/L �9% ��� ,+#,$, 5.,5 !$ K� �#$%) ! Y% #2% !5Y ,7�!� �( +� ;

% #.!#,% &!$ ;!,. K

< �22 �3% #('=* �) +,!/) !#,%9 79 5#)% #($�5 .!$ ; !$!+ ." �," ! +(!#.7 !($ ;"%  !.�#$52 ,+#, ;%) !#,%9 7�562% .�5, !+."

� �.!$$

84 �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!$ ;( +#,$ ;8<

� U��CZ F?>�? CH� U�? C�CA�* �) +,!� )% #+#.!�5 $5+#,,�$,+,! !J5%  !�!#,$ K� �#$%) ! 5�) +,% #($% �%2 + ,�0 +#,+�  5D

��) !2 K

� �#.5  !#,3% ,"' �#% #(� �) ! * �) +,!+#)�-4/) !#,%9 7��,!#,% +2 .�) !." +#(!$ ;� !$!#,,��=E
84[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$:8  !!# \ 5%2)% #(< !!$

� BC� B� BW�UG? BC� U�? C�CA�- ��2% .+#,$56 �% ,,!)  !J5!$,,� !&% $!$!2 !.,!) $!.,% �#$�9 .�#) �.�#&! $% �# !(52 +,% �#$ K]\L
L !,! �% #!#!.!$$+ 7." +#(!$ ;!#(+(!�562% . K/9 .5  !#,+��2% .+#,3% ,")  +3$ ;.��6% #!3% ,"

$56)% &% $% �#� )% #+#.!5�) +,!
- ��2% .+#,9 5#) !) ^� ^]\L

� �C� GA���� U�? C�CA�* �) +,!� )% #+#.!,�6 !+2% (#!) 3% ," 3+,! )% $, % ., !J5%  !�!#,$+#) ,�!#.�5 +(!X  !J5%  !

% �� �&!) 3+,! !99% .% !#.7
]\L
/) !#,%9 7#!.!$$+ 7." +#(!$ ;)% $.5$$3% ,"0 �J5!2�  !!1 +#)0 +#,+�  5D3+,! ) !�,$�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

� U��� U�? C�CA�T !&% $!� )% #+#.!,�.2 + %9 7% #,!#,+#) � �.!$$ ;�+1 !�� !5$! 9  % !#)2 7 ;+22 �3 !��&+2%9

#!!) !)9 � $�2 + +..!$$Q84* +.,% �#% ,!�S
]\L
/) !#,%9 7��,!#,% +2 .�) !." +#(!$ ;!#(+(!$,+1 !" �2) ! $ ;� !$!#,,��=E

84[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$:8  !!# \ 5%2)% #(< !!$

� ��� U�? C�CA�� �� ���T !&% $!� )% #+#.!,�92 +,9 !!$, 5.,5 !
< +22MNOR
<% #+2% D!� ���$!)9 !!$, 5.,5 ! ;� !$!#,,��% ,7� �5#.%2
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

 F_�? W? G? BC� U�? C�CA� � �� ���\  % #(% #,�.�#9 � �+#.!3% ," $,+,!2 +3 ; !$�2 &!% #.�#$% $,!#.% !$
]\L
L !,! �% #!#!.!$$+ 7." +#(!$ ;!#(+(!�562% . K
84[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$

?� �̀�>a �> �G b� B� ��> ��C b F�
-))  !$$3% ," #!3'= ;!$,+62% $" � �.!$$ ;$,+#) + ) $ ;.�#)% ,% �#$ ;9 !!$ ;!,. K� �#.5  !#,3% ,"' �#% #(� �) ! * �) +,!
L !,! �% #!%9 .�) !." +#(!$.+#6 !.���2 !,!) 3% ," D�#% #(5�) +,!� % � ,�IE) !+)2% #!84[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$

c �U��� �Ua? CHd BU�? e�� b� G�I �5$% #(E2 !�!#,- .,% �#/ ,!�
� �#.5  !#,3% ,"' �#% #(� �) ! * �) +,! ;5#2 !$$#!!) !) $��#! 9 � 

IE* �) +,!
]  +99% .f4 + 1% #(� ���% $$% �# ;4�" !+ % #(Q%9) �#!% #) !�!#) !#,2 7S
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

�c?>�� �U�� �A?>? �? �GI �5$% #(E2 !�!#,- .,% �#/ ,!�
� �#.5  !#,3% ,"' �#% #(� �) ! * �) +,! ;5#2 !$$#!!) !) $��#! 9 � 

IE* �) +,!
4�" !+ % #(Q%9) �#!% #) !�!#) !#,2 7S
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

� B? G�� U�? C�CA�* �) +,!g �% $!=  )% #+#.!3% ," $,+#) + ) $9 � ��! +,% �#+2 #�% $! ;.�#$, 5.,% �##�% $! ;

,!��� + 7#�% $! ;!#9 � .!�!#, ;!,. KQ84- .,% �#/ ,!�S
]\L
T !$!+ ." �," ! +(!#.7� )% #+#.!$ ;)% $.5$$3% ," #�% $!$�!.% +2% $,$X .�#$52 ,+#,$ ;%) !#,%9 79 5#)% #(8 !#! +242 +#[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$ ;

�," ! h

��i�� F?� �>? C�GL !&!2 ���% ,7�Ej-8 5%) !2% #!$ ;� �.!) 5 !$ ;+#) ,"  !$" �2) $�9 $% (#%9% .+#.!]\L
T !$!+ ." �," ! +(!#.7(5%) !2% #!$ ;$,+1 !" �2) ! �5, !+." ;/L9 5#)% #(
]\L

� ��UBW��� U���? G�L !&!2 ��+�� �&!) , !!2% $,9 � $, !!,, !!$ ; !�2 +.!�!#,, !!$ ;!#&%  �#�!#,+22 7$!#$% ,% &!

+ !+$ ;!,. K

]\L
k � 1 3% ," $,+1 !" �2) ! $+#) + 6 � % $,,�) !&!2 ��)  +9 ,, !!2% $, ;� !$!#,,�4�Q +#)��hS8 !#! +242 +#[ +% #,!#+#.!< !!$ ;

8  !!#\ 5%2)% #(< !!$

���� UBHU�@L !&!2 ��]  +#$�� ,+,% �#/ ��+.,< !!4  �( +�
MNOP
k � 1 3% ,"4k ,�) !&!2 ��)  +9 ,� �( +�
]\L

� BFG? CH� U�? C�CA�� �� ���8 !#! +2* �) +,! ;% #.2 5)% #(#!l5$$,5) 79 � % # ^2% !59 !!$ K-2 $� ^� �"%6% , !#,% #(�9% #.2 5$% �#+ 7

5#% ,$

]\L
T !$!+ ." �," ! +(!#.% !$ ;3� 1 3% ,"�% ,7- ,,� #!7 !(+ )% #(#!l5$$,5)% !$ ;)% $.5$$3% ,"4�X��

+#) $,+1 !" �2) ! $ ;)  +9 ,� ���$+2
]\L

��m������������
-67-

Item #: 6.B. CDD  Project List.pdf



�����������	�
��
�������
����������
�������
������������
�������

�?_ U�Un
L !&!2 ��) !$% (#+#)2 �.+,% �#9 � #!3X !l�+#) !)2%6  + 7
MNOP

��$$%62 !.�5#,76 �#) &�,!% #MNOP op%6  + 7$56 .���% ,,!!�!!,% #($�#(�% #( !$! &!)  !) !&!2 ���!#,��#% !$ ;
.�5#,79 5#)% #(

�? G�? C� UB��U�nT !$,� !T% $�% #( �5#) $ ;2 +#) $.+�% #( ;9 �5#,+% # ;!,. KE/T2%1 !2 7 !J5%  !)9 � "% $,� % . !$�5 .!$0 5��! MNORh� �5#.%2)%  !.,% �# ;) !&!2 ��� �q !.,) !$. % �,% �# ;T<49 � E/T � !�+ ! 
]\L

�? �n� �>>? ��� �� �W�> B�@�C�E l�2 � !���� ,5#% ,% !$,�) !&!2 ��.5  !#,$% ,!3% ,"" �,!2 ;.�#$, 5.,�+ 1% #($, 5.5, !�#

5��! �+ 1% #(2 �, ;�562% .5$!Q �+ 1X ��!#$�+.!�#2 �3! 2 �,S ;+#)  !2 �.+,!) .% ,7" +22]\L
�% ,7� �5#.%2 +5," � % D+,% �#,�� �.!!) ;) !&!2 ����,% �#$ ;�562% .�5, !+."]\
L

� ��? �B> �� �>>� U�CG? �� �C��Uk � 1 3% ," �+22 +#)[E]T= ,� !2 �.+,!, +#$% ,.!#,! 
]\L
[ +22 $56 �% ,,!) �2 +#$,�[E]T=9 �  !&% !3 ;+3+% ,% #( !$��#$!

 !$! &!)  !) !&!2 ���!#,��#% !$

� BC�UAc� BW�� B��>RO ^ ���" �,!2% #) !��,"%22
$5��! X9 +22MNOR4  !�+ ! !$��#$!$,�E/T .���!#,$

L !&!2 ��! L !��$% ,

m?>> �H�� B��>I �,!2 +,9 � �! � +�% ,�2 +]" !+,! $% ,!
]\L ;- ��2% .+#,% #,!#) $,�$56 �% ,

+9 ,! 84 +#) � % � ,�'=Xp�4 5�) +,!+) ��,% �#- ��2% .+#,#!!) $,�$56 �% ,
L !&!2 ��! L !��$% ,

� C�? HF�� BC� B� BCW�UG? BC r� B�� GsOP ^5#% ,.�#) �.�#&! $% �# ; !J5%  !$84- �!#) �!#, ;p�4 +�!#) �!#, ;[ 5#%� �) !

- �!#) �!#, ;][ ;!,.

]\LX- ��2% .+#,- ��2% .+#,,�$56 �% ,+))% ,% �#+2% #9 � �+,% �#
L !&!2 ��! L !��$% ,

 ��C� �U�� BC�? �? BCGL !&!2 ��$,+#) + ) .�#)% ,% �#$9 � &+ % �5$�! �% ,,7�!$
k% #,! MNOt ^k% #,! MNOR4�" !+ % #(

�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

 ��C� �U�� �U@? ��? C�? CHGL !&!2 ��$,+#) + ) �! �% ,9% #)% #($9 � +22 �! �% ,,7�!$ ;+2 $�. !+,!#!3+#)% �� �&!)

9% #)% #($% #.�#q 5#.,% �#3% ," #!3'=
0 � % #(X0 5��! MNORf .�#.5  !#, 3% ,"'= 5�) +,!L  +9 ,$,+#) + )9% #)% #($

84* �+% #,!#+#.!9 !!$

� �U@? �� U�Aa? CH Bd �̀�U� � �� ���/ ��2 !�!#,% �� �&!)6 5%2)% #(+#) �! �% ,, +.1% #($�9 ,3+ !
0 5��! MNORhV !#) � $!2 !.,!) ;% #$,+22 +#)% ��2 !�!#,
/]< 5#)

�> �CC? CH�C�Z F?>�? CH�?>? CH  nG��@
T !) 5.! ;)% (% ,% D! ;� (+#% D! ;+#) .+,+2 �(�2 +##% #(+#)6 5%2)% #(9%2 !$ K
]\L
/) !#,%9 7+#) +22 �.+,! !$�5 .!$Q% #,! # ;,!��$! &% .! ;!,.S
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

� ��>? A�C�� F?� �CA� u��i G u��A�  !+,!�! �% ,� �.!$$(5%) ! ;<-j $ ;+��2% .+#,% #9 �" +#) �5,$
< +22MNOR

�> �CC? CH�C�� BFG? CH � UBA�� FU�GL !&!2 ��� �.!) 5 !$9 � �! �% ,� �.!$$% #( ;�Ej- ;� �+$,+2 ;" �5$% #(� �( +�$f

+) �% #% $, +,% �# ;" !+ % #(� !� ;#�,% .% #( ;!,.
= #(�% #(
L !&!2 ��2% $,�9 � �.!) 5 !$ ;/L2 !+) $ ;. !+,!,!��2 +,!$
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

�� ��dd� ��BU�� �@�> ��� � �W? G? BCGL !&!2 ��% �� �&!) +#) �� !) !,+%2 !) $,+99  !�� ,,!��2 +,!
k% #,! MNORT

!$!+ ." �," ! +(!#.7$,+99  !�� ,$9 � !l+��2 !$ ;) !&!2 ��,!��2 +,!
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

����Z F?>�? CHv �_ G? ��5�) +,!3!6 $% ,!.�#,!#, ;5�2 �+) +#) .+,+2 �()% (% ,+2) �.5�!#,$ ;) !&!2 ���! �% ,.�$,

.+2 .52 +,� ;�� !.5$,��! $! &% .!,��2 $+#) (5%) +#.!
< +22Xk% #,! MNORhL !&!2 ��2% $,�9 5�) +,!$ ;)  +9 ,#+  +,% &!$ ;. !+,!,��2 $ ;2% #1 $ ;!,. K
�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

� �W�> B�� �U@? �� �W? �̀ �c �Aa>? G�G�  !+,!." !.12% $,$9 � &+ % �5$�! �% ,,7�!$,�!#$5 !," +,+22% $$5!$+ !.�#$%) ! !)f

+))  !$$!) +#) $56 �% ,,+2 $�!!,�% #% �5�$,+#) + ) $
k% #,! ^0 � % #(OR ^OP) !&!2 ��2% $,�9 #!.!$$+ 7 !&% !3$ ;$56 �% ,,+2  !J5%  !�!#,$ ;. !+,!,!��2 +,!$�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

�dd BU� �_> �� BFG? CH � F?� �>? C�G�  !+,!.��� !" !#$% &!(5%) !2% #!$3"% .") �.5�!#,+22 �9 ," !�% ,7w $+99 � ) +62 !" �5$% #(

� �( +�$ ;" �3," !7w  !+) �% #% $,! !) ;3" ! !+99 � ) +62 !5#% ,$+ !2 �.+,!) +#) 3" +,

� �&% $% �#$+��2 7 ;!,. K

0 � % #(MNOP
L  +9 ,(5%) !2% #!$

�LL 3� 1 � �( +�

�������	��� ��������������� ����� �����m�����
-68-

Item #: 6.B. CDD  Project List.pdf



Action Item Number Action Description Status/Schedule Responsible Party

LU-1.1 Develop Commercial and Residential Design Guidelines TBD CDD

LU-1.2

Require new development projects on Kennedy Drive to 
make physical improvements that enhance visual 
qualities of the area Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-2.1
Make regular updates to the Historic Structures List as 
new information becomes available Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-2.2

Continue to work with schools, public agencies, and 
community organizations through Capitola Historical 
Museum Curator and museum archives Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-2.3 Develop Historic Preservation Guidelines TBD CDD

LU-2.4
Establish local register of historic resources and a 
historic district on Depot Hill

Complete in conjunction with Historic 
Preservation Program CDD

LU-2.5 Develop comprehensive Historic Preservation Program TBD CDD

LU-5.1
Review development applications with City appointed 
design review group Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-6.1

Pursue opportunities to increase entertainment and 
recreational opportunities in the Village, particularly 
those with a connection to the natural environment and 
coastal setting Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-6.2
Continue to enforce the residential overlay zone in the 
Village Ongoing Effort CDD

LU-7.1 Update Village Design Guidelines TBD CDD

LU-7.2
Develop a program to provide alternative parking 
arrangements for visitor-serving uses in the Village Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

LU-7.3 Allow Hotels in Village to apply for additional FAR Ongoing Policy CDD

LU-8.1
Work with Capitola Mall and METRO to relocate transit 
center Underway, METRO to evaluate proposal CDD, PW, CM

-69-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



LU-8.2

Identify funding sources for infrastructure 
improvements to stimulate investiment and 
redevelopment of Capitiola Mall and provide urban 
amenities attractive to residential and mixed-use 
development Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

LU-8.3 Update 41st Avenue Design Guidelines TBD CDD
LU-9.1 Enhance auto plaza visibility from 41st Ave Concurrent with zoning update CDD

LU-9.2
Amend ZO to allow more prominent signage for auto 
plaza Concurrent with zoning update CDD

Lu-9.3
Allow Increased FAR for qualifying projects along 41st 
Ave corridor Ongoing Policy CDD

LU-9.4

Amend ZO to require PC findings that proposed non-
retail uses on 41st Ave will not detract from economic 
vitality Concurrent with zoning update CDD

LU-9.4
Prepare a study to examine optimal socio-economic mix 
of retail and office/professional uses on 41st Ave TBD CDD

LU-10.1
Explore opportunities to install medians on Bay Ave 
where left turn movements would not be restricted Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

LU-10.2 Study feasibility of roundabout at Bay Ave/Capitola Ave Grant funds approved for study PW
LU-10.3 Prepare a streetscape master plan for Bay Ave TBD CDD, PW

LU-11.1
Design, approve, finance, & construct parking structure 
on Beach and Village Parking Lot #1 property Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

LU-11.2
Evaluate possibility of using new parking structure to 
host special events Following completion of parking structure CDD, PW, CM

LU-11.3
Develop a phased plan to convert Beach and Village 
Parking Lot #2 to open space, park, or other public use TBD CDD, PW, CM

LU-12.1

Actively seek grant funding to enhance public access to 
and enjoyment of natural open spaces on the Rispin 
Property Grant awarded, planning underway CDD, PW

-70-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



LU-12.2

Prepare a feasibility study to evaluate potential 
improvements for the wharf, including issues relating to 
access, restrooms, public safety, maintenance, parking, 
signage, and sea-level rise TBD, actively seeking grant opportunities CDD, PW, CM

LU-12.3

Implement a plan to construct a multi-use park, natural 
open spaces, and recreational improvements at the 
McGregor Property

Plans approved, contract negotiations 
underway PW

LU-12.4
Consider adjusting parking regulations in the wharf area 
to increase access for residents TBD PW

LU-13.1
Pursue all available grant opportunities to improve 
existing parks and recreational facilities Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

LU-13.2

Identify improvements needed to fill gaps in the City's 
sidewalk system and incorporate improvements into CIP 
program Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

LU-13.3

Continue to clean and improve the maintenance of the 
beach.  Develop program to continue to provide 
adequate public facilities such as restrooms, showers, 
and drop-off locations for beach-goers Ongoing Effort PW

LU-14.1 Maintain existing trails and pathways Ongoing Effort PW

LU-14.2

Cooperate with RTC to encourage connections with 
regional trails such as Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic 
Trail Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

LU-14.3

Explore opportunities to increase coastal recreational 
activities in Capitola, particularly those that support 
environmental stewardship of marine & coastal 
environment Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

OSC-1.1
Amend City's puchasing policy to prioritize green 
business practices and local businesses TBD CDD, CM

OSC-1.2

Form partnerships with local schools and community 
organizations to support programs aimed at teaching 
young people about environmental stewardship TBD CDD

OSC-2.1 Implement strategies in the Climate Action Plan Following CAP adoption CDD

-71-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



OSC-2.2 Update the Climate Action Plan as required by state law Ongoing Effort CDD

OSC-4.1
Implement measures in the CAP intended to promote 
renewable energy and alternative fuels Following CAP adoption CDD

OSC-4.2
Support the creation of the Monterey Bay Community 
Choice Aggregation Ongoing Effort CDD

OSC-4.3

Amend the Tree Protection Ordinance to allow solar 
access and passive solar design in new and exisitng 
development Following zoning update CDD

OSC-5.1
Periodically review and update development codes and 
regulations to promote energy efficient technologies Concurrent with zoning update and CAP CDD

OSC-5.2

Periodically review and update green building ordinance 
to ensure effectiveness relative to Title 24.  Consider 
repealing green building ordinance if redundant with 
Title 24 Ongoing Effort CDD

OSC-5.3

Continue to make energy improvements to City facilities 
to maintain certification from the Monterey Bay Green 
Business Program Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

OSC-6.1
Pursue grant funding to develop a marketing strategy to 
attract new eco-tourism businesses to Capitola Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

OSC-7.1
Develop a native riparian plant list for landscaping along 
creeks and in wetlands TBD CDD

OSC-8.1

Develop a priority list and timeline for public stormwater 
drainage infrastructure improvements for all 
neighborhoods of Capitola TBD PW

OSC-8.2

Identify funding sources to upgrate existing inadequate 
stormwater facilities and address on-site retention of 
contaminants TBD PW

OSC-8.3

Update Capitola's stormwater pollution prevention 
program as necessary to be consistent with state 
requirements Ongoing Effort PW

-72-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



OSC-9.1

Evaluate opportunities to develop and implement a 
greywater reclamation system for landscaping and other 
potable water uses for domestic, commercial, and 
industrical consumers.  Encourage households and new 
developments to implement greywater systems TBD CDD, PW

OSC-9.2
Establish water conservation goals for City buildings and 
operations Following CAP adoption CDD, PW, CM

OSC-9.3

Cooperate with water district efforts to require water 
efficiency audits at point of sale for commercial and 
residential properties and the use of water conserving 
plumbing fixtures in all new development Ongoing Effort CDD

OSC-9.4

Encourage water districts to develop incentive programs 
for the use of drought-tolerant landscaping and recycled 
water for landscaping Ongoing Effort CDD

OSC-9.5

Cooperate with the Soquel Creek Water Distrcit to 
identify and implement measures to prevent salt water 
intrusion Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

OSC-10.1

Pursue opportunities that become available to use 
undeveloped City properties or parkland for urban 
agriculture uses, such as community gardens and 
farmers markets. Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

OSC-10.2
Amend the City's purchasing policies to encourage the 
use of foods grown in Santa Cruz County at City events TBD CDD, CM

OSC-11.1

Identify and implement financial incentives to 
households and businesses to reduce the volume of 
solid waste sent to landfills TBD CDD, CM

OSC-11.2

Evaluate the feasibility of adopting a restaurant food 
waste reduction program or ordinance.  Based on the 
results, adopt such a program or ordinance, as 
appropriate TBD CDD, CM

-73-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



OSC-11.3
Encourage the use of recycled asphalt pavement for 
commercial and community parking lots Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

OSC-11.4
Amend the City's purchasing policies to promote the use 
of reusable, returnable, recyclable, and repairable goods TBD CDD, CM

MO-1.1

Work with the Santa Cruz RTC, County of Santa Cruz, and 
Caltrans to seek funding to support local mobility 
programs Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-1.2

Participate with RTC, AMBAG, and County to create and 
implement programs to coordinate multi-modal 
transportation needs, including the Regional 
Transportation Plan, Metropolitan Transportation Plan, 
and the Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail Master 
Plan Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-1.3

Coordinate with Caltrans to create improvements to 
Hwy 1 over- and under-passes including roadway 
configuration, signal timing, and pedestrian/bike safety 
and access Pending Caltrans progress CDD, PW

MO-2.1

Develop a set of minimum and preferred Complete 
Streets standards that can be referenced when 
retrofitting existing roadways TBD CDD, PW

MO-2.2
Incorporate Complete Streets projects as part of the 
City's CIP program Ongoing Effort PW

MO-2.3

Establish by local ordinance the ability to require 
dedication or IODs for streets, alleys, and additional land 
as may be necessary to provide bicycle paths, and/or 
local tranist facilities TBD CDD, PW

MO-2.4 Establish a safe routes to schools program
Program currently being pursued by school 
districts PW

MO-3.1

Monitor traffic volumes and vehicle speeds on local 
streets in residential neighborhoods as new 
development is proposed.  Consider installing traffic 
calming measures if cut-through traffic increases as a 
result of adjacent development Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

-74-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



MO-3.2
Update and maintain coordinated signal timing on traffic 
corridors, particularly on 41st Ave Ongoing Effort PW

MO-3.3

Monitor traffic as new development is proposed or 
when increased traffic volumes are observed to ensure 
that planned improvements are scheduled prior to 
deterioration of LOS below desired standards Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-3.4
Prepare and implement a transportation impact fee (TIF) 
Program TBD CDD, PW

MO-3.5
Finance circulation system improvements by using local 
revenues as a match to leverage state and federal funds Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-4.1

Prepare a study and coordinate outreach with business 
stakeholders and the public to evaluate construction of a 
roundabout at Bay Ave/Capitola Ave Anticipated to occur in FY 14-15 CDD, PW

MO-5.1

Develop parking management tools that discourage 
motorists from circling city streets in search of parking.  
Provide conspicuous signage, web-based applications, 
demand-based pricing, and/or other means to direct 
visitors to available parking areas TBD CDD, PW, PD

MO-6.1

Develop and implement a real-time "intelligent traffic 
management" system to inform motorists of parking 
availability TBD CDD, PW, PD

MO-6.2

When additional parking to serve the Village is provided 
in a new parking structure, initiate a study to assess the 
feasibility of converting exisitng parking on the 
Esplanade to publically accessible open space TBD CDD, PW

MO-6.3

Install additional bicycle parking (e.g., bike racks/bike 
boxes) in the Village to accommodate seasonal demand 
and special events TBD CDD, PW

-75-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



MO-6.4
Continue to maintain the Capitola Village/Beach parking 
program for Village users Ongoing Effort PW

MO-7.1

Work with METRO to continually assess and improve 
transit coverage by providing additional routes and 
increased service frequency Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

MO-7.2
Work with Capitola Mall stakeholders and METRO to 
relocate transit station Underway, METRO to evaluate proposal CDD, PW, CM

MO-7.3
Improve existing bus stops to provide a safe and 
convenient access Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-8.1
Maintain and update the Capitola Bicycle Transportation 
Plan as necessary Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-8.2
Incorporate projects identified in Capitola's Bicycle 
Transportation Plan into the CIP program Ongoing Effort PW

MO-8.3

Actively participate in efforts to implement new bicycle 
pathways identified in the Monterey Bay Sanctuary 
Scenic Trail Master Plan.  Ensure bicyclists can safely 
cross Soquel Creek TBD CDD, PW

MO-8.4

Establish City standards for intersection improvements, 
including front queuing zones, painted sharrow lanes, 
and bike detection signal systems TBD CDD, PW

MO-8.5

Work with Caltrans to ensure that any future 
modifications to Hwy 1 interchanges improve safety and 
convenience for bicyclists TBD CDD, PW

MO-9.1
Seek funding to expand and improve sidewalks, 
pathways, and other pedestrian facilities Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

MO-9.2

Identify and inventory significant obstacles and 
obstructions, such as utility poles, traffic signal control 
boxes, overgrown vegetation, and root damage on 
sidewalks.  Eliminate or mitigate obstacles as funding 
becomes available. TBD CDD, PW

MO-9.3
Include and address sidewalk improvements in the CIP 
program Ongoing Effort PW

-76-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



MO-9.4
Continue to implement the City's sidewalk maintenance 
program Ongoing Effort PW

SN-1.1
Enroll the City in FEMA's National Flood Insurance 
Program Community Rating System TBD CDD, PW

SN-1.2

Continue to work with County Public Works and County 
Flood Control District to 1) plan for improvements to 
stormwater facilities, 2) evaluate effectiveness of 
current policies and ordinances to ensure stormwater 
runoff does not contribute to flooding Ongoing Effort PW

SN-1.3 Develop accurate GIS maps of the City's drainage system TBD PW

SN-1.4

Review and revise the Safety Element as necessary to 
identify whether any new housing areas are prone to 
flood hazards Ongoing Effort CDD

SN-1.5
Regularly review the Land Use Element to account for 
new flood information Ongoing Effort CDD

SN-2.1
Identify funding sources to assist in necessary seismic 
upgrades to City facilities Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

SN-2.2
Work with Caltrans, RTC, and other agencies to ensure 
seismic safety and integrity of bridges and overpasses Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

SN-2.3

Periodically review  the GP, ZO, Subdivision Ordinance, 
and Building Code to ensure geologic data and 
information relating to seismic hazards is current and 
accurate Ongoing Effort CDD

SN-2.4

Continue the un-reinforced masonry program to retrofit 
all remaining non-complying buildings seeking building 
permits Ongoing Effort CDD

SN-3.1

Cooperate with CA Dept of Forestry and Fire Protection 
to reduce significant fire threats resulting from invasive 
species such as eucalyptus groves which are not part of a 
protected habitat area (monarch butterflies) Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

-77-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



SN-3.2

Monitor the visibility of road signs and address markings 
of businesses and residences and address visibility to 
maximize fire response times Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, PD

SN-3.3

Coordinate with public safety providers to implement 
feasible improvements and/or access plans for roadways 
with identified fire and emergency access deficiencies TBD CDD, PW, PD

SN-4.1
Provide on-going trainings for appropriate City 
personnel in hazardous materials response and handling Ongoing Effort CM

SN-4.2

Review chapter 7.100 (hazardous materials) of the 
County Code (and incorporated into City's Muni Code) to 
determine whether these provisions remain appropriate 
for Capitola and amend them as needed TBD CDD

SN-5.1

Work with Santa Cruz County Emergency Services to 
periodically review the County-wide emergency 
response plan and revise as needed to ensure adequate 
disaster preparedness    Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

SN-5.2
Continue to participate in Santa Cruz County Emergency 
Services preparedness exercises Ongoing Effort CM

SN-5.3
Continue to provide basic training for all City employees 
in disaster preparedness, first aid, and CPR Ongoing Effort CM

SN-5.4

Periodically provide disaster preparedness information 
to residents through City newsletters, e-notify, 
informational booths at events, newspaper articles, etc. Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

SN-5.5
Continue to study opportunities to relocate police, fire, 
and other first responders out of the flood zone TBD CDD, PD, PW, CM

SN-5.6
Periodically review Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and 
amend as needed to reflect changed conditions Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, PD

-78-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



SN-7.1

Review, revise, and maintain Capitola's Noise Ordinance 
to ensure it effectively minimizes the community's 
exposure to noise TBD CDD

ED-1.1

Collaborate with the Capitola-Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce and Village BIA to conduct regular surveys of 
merchants to assess the needs and issues of locally 
owned and independent businesses TBD CDD, CM

ED-1.2

Support and participate in activities of business and 
tourism organizations to promote and disseminate 
Capitola's identity and offerings Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

ED-1.3

Study and monitor opportunities to establish new 
funding and financing mechanisms for infrastructure 
improvements benefitting merchants and property 
owners in Capitola's commercial areas, such as a 
business improvement district, assessment district, or 
CFD Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

ED-1.4
Actively partner with the Village BIA to maintain and 
activate public spaces in the Village Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

ED-2.1
Continue to participate in the Chamber of Commerce's 
Economic Development Committee Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

ED-2.2

Meet periodically with the Chamber of Commerce, 
Village BIA, and other groups to discuss strategies to 
attract and retain desired types of retailers.  Ongoing Effort CDD, CM

ED-2.3

Study the possibility of establishing guidelines requiring 
fiscal impact analysis for larger development projects in 
key commercial areas of the City TBD CDD

ED-2.4

Ensure that infrastructure projects listed in the CIP 
program support Capitola's long-term vision for 
commercial and mixed-use areas, including the Village, 
41st Ave corridor, and Bay Ave Ongoing Effort CDD, PW

-79-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f



ED-2.5
Identify ways to enhance the visibility from 41st Ave, 
including possible improvements to signage Concurrent with zoning update CDD

ED-3.1

Periodically review and update Capitola's Green Building 
Ordinance as a tool to support sustainable jobs and 
businesses in Capitola.  Consider replealing Green 
Building Ordinance if it becomes redundant with Title 24 Ongoing Effort CDD

ED-3.2

Utlilize the Green Economy Matrix included in the Green 
Jobs report as a tool to guide City policy related to 
promotion of sustainable jobs in Capitola Ongoing Effort CDD, PW, CM

-80-

Item
 #: 6.B

. G
P

 A
ctio

n
 Item

s.p
d

f


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approval of Draft Planning Commission minutes from July 17, 2014 meeting.
	[7-17-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 127 Monterey Ave #14-056 APN: 035-244-03
	[127 Monterey Ave Design Permit & CUP Staff Report.pdf]
	[127 Monterey Ave Plans.pdf]
	[127 Monterey Ave Historic Architectural Review.pdf]
	[127 Monterey Ave Historic Photos.pdf]
	Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit for the remodel of a Historic Resource located in the CV (Central Village) zoning district. This project is located in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Craig French, applied: 04/22/14Representative: Dennis Diego AIA (Architect)

	B. 111 Central Ave #14-099 APN: 036-112-08
	[111 Central Ave Staff Report.pdf]
	[111 Central Ave Project Plans.pdf]
	[111 Central Avenue Coastal Findings.pdf]
	[111 Central Ave Tree Pictures.pdf]
	Design Permit for a second story addition and Variance for the required parking at the existing Single Family Residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Anh DoRepresentative: Devlin Jones, filed 6/24/14


	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	A. Standard Conditions for Commercial Uses
	[Standard Conditions of Approval Staff Report.pdf]
	[Standard Conditions for Commercial.pdf]

	B. Community Development Department Work Plan Update
	[CDD Work Program - PC Staff Report.pdf]
	[CDD  Project List.pdf]
	[GP Action Items.pdf]


	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

